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COMPETITIVE PROBLEMS IN THE DRUG INDUSTRY

(Present Status of Competition in the Pharmaceutical
Industry)

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 1974

U. S. SENaTE,
SuBcoMMITTEE ON MONOPOLY OF THE
SeLeor CoMMITTEE ON SMaLL Busivess,
Washington, D.C.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 a.m., in room
6202, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Gaylord Nelson [chair-
man of the subcommittee] presiding. : :

Present : Senator Nelson. ‘

Also present: Chester H. Smith, Staff Director and General
Counsel ; Benjamin Gordon, Staff Economist; and John O. Adams,
Minority Counsel. : ‘

Senator Nerson. The Subcommittee on Monopoly of the Senate
Small Business Committee is today resuming its hearings on the
efficiency, economy and rationality of the Federal agencies and de-
partments in the procurement of drugs, as well as reimbursement
under various programs of Government. ,

The subcommittee is particularly. interested in-finding ways in
which competition can be promoted and the cost of drugs to Govern-
ment can be reduced both in direct procurement of drugs and in re-
imbursement for drugs under medicare and medicaid. The witnesses
have been asked to discuss: (1) efforts of Federal agencies to re-
duce the cost and to improve the procurement and supply of drugs in
the Federal Government; (2) progress by Federal agencies in im-
plementing the recommendations ‘included in the Comptroller Gen-
eral’s Report on Federal drug procurement dated December 6, 1973;
(8) views.of drug purchasing agencies concerning consolidation with-
in the FDA. of quality assurance activities relating to Federal pro-
curement of drugs; (4) the efforts of the Federal agencies to: (a)
promote the use of formularies and encourage the use of generic
products, and (b) assure that only effective drugs are procured and
used in Federal programs; (5) the relationship of FDA with other
Government agencies in drug procurement and reimbursement; (6)
the steps taken by the Food and Drug Administration to ensure a
uniformly high quality for the Nation’s drug supply. ‘
. Qur witnesses today are Mr. Elmer Staats, gomptroﬂer General
of the United States and Dr. Aléxander Schmidt, Commissioner of
the Food and Drug Administration. ‘ ~ o
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Mr. Staats, the Committee is very pleased to have you appear here
today. We are well aware of the extensive work you and your agency
have been doing in the field. We recognize it is a very valuable con-
tribution to the problem that we are dealing with here.

Your statement will be printed in the record and you may pre-
sent it however you desire. And would you identify, for the record,
your associates so that the reporter will know who they are in the
event they have some comment to make?* ' '

STATEMENT OF HON. ELMER B. STAATS, COMPTROLLER GENERAL
OF THE UNITED STATES GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, WASH-
INGTON, D.C., ACCOMPANIED BY GREGORY J. AHART, DIRECTOR,
MANPOWER AND WELFARE DIVISION, GENERAL ACCOUNTING
OFFICE; DEAN CROWTHER, DEPUTY DIRECTOR, MANPOWER AND
WELFARE DIVISION; JAMES D. MARTIN, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR,
MANPOWER AND WELFARE DIVISION; AND PAUL SHNITZER,
ASSOCIATE GENERAL COUNSEL, GENERAL ACCOUNTING. OFFICE

Mr. Staars. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To my immediate right,
Mr. Gregory Ahart, who is the Director of our Manpower and
Welfare Division; to his right, Mr. Dean Crowther, who is Deputy
Director of that Division; Mr. James Martin here to my immediate
left is an Associate Director of that Division; and Mr. Paul Shnit-
zer, Associate General Counsel, of the GAO. o

Mr. Chairman, in the interest of saving time for questions and
for your next witness, T will try to summarize and paraphrase
the statement which you have before you, and I will refer to it by
page as we go along. : '

I believe we can cover the substance .of the statement and speed
up :the process. We are goinig to be covering today in our testimony
three subjects. One is our December 6th report on Federal procure-
ment of drugs; second, the status of Federal efforts to promote the
use of formularies and encourage the use of lower piiced dru,
including generics; and third, the:status of actions taken by the
- Federal agencies to- assure that only effective drugs are procured.

On page 2, we point out that Federal expenditures and reimburse-
ments for prescription drugs.amounted to about $1.6:billion in
fiscal year 1973, which is an increase of more than $44 million over
the expenditures for 1972. And, more significantly, a $500 million
increase since 1970. : ‘ ’ »

This amount includes about $252 million in direct drug purchases
by Federal agencies, and reimbursements of over $1.3 billion under
federally .sponsored health programs such as medicare and med-
- 1caid, -which have increased some $430 million ‘since 1970, thus

accounting for more than 80 percent of the total increase. The in--
creases in medicare and medicaid expenditures account for virtually
all of the increases in the reimbursement programs.. =

~Senator NeLson. What was that total increase?

1 See information beginning at page 10497, . -
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Mr, Staars. These are figures since 1970,

Senator Nerson. What was the total?

Mr. Sraats. The total is $1.3 billion there—it is in my statement.

Sen?abor Nerson. Yes, I see it. You said the increase was how
much

Mr. Staars. This increase is about $480 million since 1970, thus
it is about 80 percent of the total increase and virtually all of the
increase in the reimbursement. category is in the medicare and
medicaid programs even though there are some other reimburse-
ment programs, such as CHAMPUS. The increases indicated by
going back to 1970 are much more significant than those indicated
by the increases from 1972 to 1973.

Now if you turn to the next page, page 8, we point out here that
about 84 percent of the total Federal expenditures for prescription
drugs during fiscal year 1973 were indirect in that they consisted prin-
cipally of the Federal share of drug costs provided to beneficiaries of
health programs supported by the Government.

Medicare accounts for about $675 million, medicaid $605 million,
the Federal employee health benefits program $41 million, and the
CHAMPUS program $30 million. ;

We have a full table, Mr. Chairman, showing the increases in this
?rogram,_ both direct and indirect, beginning in 1969 and, if you agree,

would like to have that inserted in the record at this point. It just
grings out the picture a little more clearly than I can in my summary

ere. .

Senator Nersown. It will be printed in the record at this point.

[Testimony resumes at page 9926. The material referred to
follows :]



9924 COMPETITIVE PROBLEMS IN THE DRUG INDUSTRY

ESTIMATED FEDERAL -EXPENDITURES
FOR PRESCRIPTION DRUGS

Fiscal year expenditures (in millions)

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES $ 999.5°  $1,065.9 - $1,331,1 $1,527.9° $1,572.3
TOTAL DIRECT PURCHASE 203.2 177.3 268.7 ~ 275.0  252.0
Department of Defense Depot! 103.2 7.4 105.6 - . 103.1 91.4
Yeterans Administration . o
Depot and Local 30.4 - 2.3 35.4 46.3 .- 49,9
Federal Supply Schedule 57.4° . 60.4 T75.2 7m0 182
Public Health Service? 122 6.8 " 18.3 20.0 13.6
Agency for International’ s ] : k S
Development NA 14.0 11.0 19.2 10.4
Small Federal Programs® NA S N 21.6 7.2 . 8.5
Office of Economic Opportuﬁi‘ty NA 2.3 Y CNA L
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENTvPROGRAMSG . 796.3" 888.6  1,062.4  1,252.9- 1,320.3
Medicare, Part A - . 460.7 4822 5.2 616.8  674.0
Medicaid; Institutional 131.0 “154.2 202.6 " 257.6 264.8
Medicatd, Ambulatory 158.1 2060  252.8  308.8 . 340.5
Federal Emponees Health7 k s
Benefits 22.9 22.5 31.3 40.9 NA
CHAMPUS, Institutional 12.4 13.0 18.6 2.4 2%
CHAMPUS, Ambulatory 2.8 3.6 ‘3.8 4.7 6.1
VA Hémetown Pharmacy 2.6 , 1.4 3.2 2 NA 4,1
~0EO Vendor Program 2.4 2.4 0.6 - NA NA
Public Health Service ‘ g 1.2 5.8 N 2.5
Federal Employees Compensation N7 2.3 2.5 2,7 3:.2;

Sources: Estimates for fiscal years 1972 and 1973 were made using data supplied by
$ndividual departments and agencies responsible for the programs and activities
Tisted above. Data for fiscal years 1969 L::ni*ozgg :’971hwe5e obft:':in:d gr‘i‘mav{uy
. from the Prescription Drug Data Summary published by the Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare, :
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Data concerning non-Federal Supply Schedule focal procurements made.‘
. by DOD activities data is not available. These local procurementﬁ‘

may approximate 18 percent of depot procurements.

‘Excludes data for St. Elizabeths Hospital, National In#titutes of
Health, and National Institutes of Mental Health. For fiscal year
1973, $6.2 million of the $12.0 mi1lion was prdcuredufor the ' _
Commuﬁicab1e Disease Center by the VA under special Federal Supply
Schedule contracts but is not included in the $78.2 million procure-
ments. under Federal Supply Schedules,

An unde}erm1ned amount of AID-furnished drugs are procured from DOD

or VA depots.
. Not available.

Includes expenditures for U.S. Bureau of Prisons, Peace Corps,
Coast Guard, D.C. Government, Job Corps, and several other small
programs. For fiscal year 1971 data includes expenditures for

unspécified small Federal programs.
Estimates for reimbursement programs include costs of drug dispensing.

Amounts represent estimated expehditures for drugs in the Federal

~contribution to employee's health insurance premiums.
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Mr. Staars. Now on page 4 we point out, in the first full para-
graph, that pending legislation which would increase Federal
participation in health care activities, suggests that Federal ex-
penditures for drugs may increase in the future, and perhaps very
substantially. )

During the first session of the 93rd Congress, numerous bills were
introduced which dealt, in part, with drug purchases under the
medicare program. Most of these bills included provisions to ex-
tend medicare to cover the costs of certain drugs to be dispensed
to eligible recipients on an outpatient basis, and used to treat
specified chronic illnesses. )

.. The Social Security Administration estimates that such an exten-
sion of Medicare coverage would cost about $1.1 billion a year.

Now on the next page, we point out that several national health
insurance proposals are currently under consideration. The passage,
obviously, of a national health insurance plan would represent a
major upward impact on Federal outlays for drugs.

Now, turning to our December 6th report, we discussed the
effectiveness of Federal agencies’ administration of programs and
activities relating to the direct procurement and supply of drugs.

This matter has been a subject of interest since at least 1963 when
Federal agencies began studying the possibility of a single agency
having Government-wide responsibility for managing pharmaceuti-
cals. In February 1971, the General Services Administration, and
the Department of Defense, agreed to assign medical material to
DSA~—that is the Defense Supply Agency—for integrated manage-
ment, but the assignment was deferred pending the outcome of a
comprehensive study proposed by the OMB in June of 1971.

Now this study was started in January of 1972, just 2 years ago.
. Senator NerLson. What was the outcome of the discussions involv-
ing the proposal to have all purchasing concentrated in just one

- agency ?

Mr. Stasts. I come to that a little bit later, if that is all right.
I believe it is covered.

As of December 1973, no final agreement had been reached as
to whether a single manager for drugs would be established. Our
report supports the need for coordinated action in procuring and
supplying drugs. ,

n summary, we concluded that significant savings and other
advantages could result from greater coordination and cooperation
between ~the agencies in procuring drugs, such as consolidating
requirements, making joint procurements, and reducing small-quan-
tity local purchases by authorizing use by any Federal agency of
any centralized Government supply source.

Second, there should be increased use of specifications for drug
products to encourage greater competition and central management
of drugs to reduce costs.

Third, better reporting of drugs bought locally and better use

of related reports would improve selection of items for central
management.
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Fourth, responsibility for all quality assurance activities relative
to Federal purchase of drugs should be assigned to the Food and
Drug Administration. )

Turning to page 7, to improve the direct procurement and supply
of drugs by Federal agencies, we recommended that the OMB take
the lead in developing policies and procedures, including consoli-
dating requirements, to increase agency cooperation in buying drugs,
and achieving substantial savings through large-volume buys. Field
installations should be authorized to obtain their drug:requirements
from any centralized Government supply source. o

The VA should develop specifications for all new drugs which it
decides to manage centrally and centrally managed drugs, for
which it currently has no specifications. : ) )

Third, the Department of Defense should revise its policy to
ensure that drugs will be obtained centrally whenever savings
would result.

Fourth, Defense and VA should develop specifications which
would satisfy all Federal agencies’ requirements.

Fifth, Defense should develop, for reporting local drug pur-
chases, a uniform reporting system aimed at requiring all military
activities with individual drug purchases exceeding specified cri-
teria to report their purchases; and require centrally managed drugs
purchased from other than a central manager to be reported.

Sixth, the VA should require that its central office supply serv-
ice prepare lists of summary and exception data from the informa-
tion reported; require local field stations to report their purchase
data correctly and consistently; and see that all vendors report de-
tailed sales data when required, by contracts. -

Seventh, Defense and VA should consider using a standardized
coding system, such as the National Drug Code, for identifying
local purchases of drugs not having Federal stock numbers.

Eighth, Defense, HEW and VA should review the frequency and
type of Inspections required and the related changes needed to
transfer to FDA of all quality assurance responsibilities pertaining
to purchases of drugs by Federal agencies.

Mr. Chairman, this is a fairly long report, but it seems to us it
might be useful to have it inserted in the record.

Senator NerLson. It will be received for the record.

Mr. Staats. This is a very brief summary of that report.

On_ page 9 we point out that the OMB—and this gets to your
question of a few minutes ago—in commenting on our final report,
by letter dated January 14, 1974, stated that the study group had
completed its report- and had made recommendations which are
currently under review by the principal agencies involved. The OMB
stated also that the findings and recommendations of its study
closely paralleled those of the GAO report.

_Mr. Gorbox, Are there any differences between your recommenda-
tions and the recommendations of the OMB report ¢

Mr. Amarr. I think, Mr. Gordon, that the recommendations of
their report would be somewhat more specific than ours, because they
made an in-depth study of the various agencies concerned, and prob-
ably went much more deeply into it. ~ D
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As-the Comptroller General indicated, OMB has stated that the
recommendations are parallel to ours and are in line with our ob-
jectives, .

Mr. Sraars. In the next paragraph, we point out that the Defense
Department_also, in commenting on our report, indicated general
agreement. In the last sentence of that paragraph, they are indi-
cating that a clarifying policy adapting medical items for central
procurement is expected to be released in about 60 days. :

And, in the Veterans Administration’s letter dated January 16,
1974, they also indicated general agreement with the report and
indicating that its marketing centers and supply depots would accept
orders from DOD field installations.

VA will initiate a control system with DOD to assure that drug
specifications are either developed jointly or coordinated; and it is
willing to rely on FDA to provide quality assurance for VA drug
purchases, provided that FDA makes the necessary data available
in a timely manner. S

Now we point out here also that HEW likes the idea of a single
agency plan for quality control, and it is indicated that the Food
and Drug Administration is therefore currently developing an
initial concept for that consolidated program, based on its assess-
ment of quality assurance requirements.

Now, turning to page 11, we turn to the second topic of our testi-
mony, dealing with reducing drug costs through the use of formu-
laries, and encouraging the use of lower priced ‘drugs, including
generics.

The military medical regulations require that Pharmacy and
Therapeutic Committees be appointed by the commanders of U.S.
military hospitals. :

Among the primary functions of the P. & T. Committees are the
development and periodic review and revision of the hospitals’ drug
formularies. In making decisions concerning the addition or con-
tinuation of formulary items, the P. & T. Committees consider the
relative costs of therapeutic alternatives.

In addition to the general use of formularies by the services, the
Surgeons General and subordinate administrative levels issue month-
ly newsletters or special letters to health facilities highlighting

comparative prices of drugs maintained in central inventories and
encouraging the use of less expensive drugs when they are con-.
sidered to be therapeutically equivalent to the more expensive items.

Prescriptions written by military physicians and filled in military
hospitals for brand-name products may be filled with generic
equivalent products except when the physicians ‘specifically ‘require
that such substitutions not be made. '

The DOD has not established regulations requiring the use of
formularies in the CHAMPUS program, and has not encouraged
the use of generic drug products for either the inpatient or out-
patient portions of the CHAMPUS program. '

The Veterans Administration requires that each of its medical
facilities have a P. & T. Committee which develops and maintains




COMPETITIVE PROBLEMS IN THE DRUG INDUSTRY 9929

a drug formulary. This formulary generally consists of mono-
grxatphsg on those groducts selected by the P. & T. Committees for
use in the facility. - ) ) .

Generally, prescriptions will not be filled for drug items not in-
cluded in the formulary. However, exceptions may be made with
special permission. e

These monographs include the nonproprietary names of the drug,
therapeutic classification, dosage, and instructions. regarding prod-
uct usage. The VA has also instructed its physicians that generic
identification of prescribed medications is preferred to the use of
brand names. .

The HEW agencies that provide direct patient care, such as the
Indian Health and the Federal Health Program Services of the
Public Health Service, require that all field installations be serviced
by P. & T. Committees responsible for the development and main-
tenance of current formularies of accepted drugs. - :

The formularies are required to list drug items by their official
generic; or nonproprietary names, and only - formulary drugs are
authorized for routine use by HEW installations providing direct
patient care. ’ ‘ ’ ‘

Among the items the P. & T. Committees are required to con-
sider in developing their formularies are comparative efficacy of
formulary drugs with other drugs intended for the same use,
evaluation of the benefit/risk of formulary drugs, and cost effective-
ness, ‘

Under part A of the medicare program, drugs are paid for by
the Social Security Administration, through fiscal intermediaries,
as part of the eligible recipients’ total hospital bills, o

Under part B of the program, Federal coverage for physicians
and related services are provided through organizations known as
“carriers”. T R

Coverage of drugs under part B is limited to those drugs which
are commonly furnished in physicians offices and which cannot
normally be self-administered. , N :

The regulations for medicare state that in order for a drug to-be
covered under part A, it must represent a cost to the institution
in rendering services to the beneficiary, and either be included or
approved for inclusion in specified drug reference volumes or ap-
proved by a P. & T. Committee—or equivalent—for use in the:
“participating hospital. : T ‘ %

In order to be covered under part B, costs of eligible drugs; like
those of other medical services, must be accepted by the carrier as
reasonable and necessary. ' :

Under this system, SSA generally is not provided detailed infor-
mation concerning the specific drugs that are being prescribed
under medicare. SSA advises that there are currently no regulations

which' encourage the use of generic drug products. .
Under the medicaid program, which is administered by State
agencles with Federal guidance and reimbursed in pait by the

Social and Rehabilitation Service, the use of formularies and generic
products is optional. e



0930 COMPETITIVE PROBLEMS IN THE DRUG INDUSTRY

The applicable Federal policy states that “where either is em-
ployed, there must be standards for quality, safety, and effective-
ness, under the supervision of professional personnel.”

Although SRS discusses the use of a formulary system as a
‘means of reducing overall drug costs, the use of formularies is not
required. Presently 20 States use some type of formulary. '

SRS, in its Medical Assistance Manual, points out the arguments
for and against the use of generic drugs, but does not emphasize
their use. : .

Although the States generally accumulate date concerning the
specific drugs being dispensed under the medicaid program, the
data is not normally provided to SRS. »

As you know, Secretary Weinberger recently announced that
HEW will be publishing regulations for public comment which, if
adopted, would limit drug reimbursements under programs admin-
istered by the Department to the lowest cost at which the drug is
generally available, unless there is a demonstrated difference in
therapeutic effect. ;

- The reimbursement policy is intended to result in major savings
in the cost of providing prescription drugs under medicare and
medicaid. The announcement prompted the Chairman of the Senate
Subcommittee on Health, Committee on Labor and Public Welfare,
to hold another hearing on February 1, 1974, to provide repre-
sentatives of the administration and ‘the drug industry the oppor-
tunity to clarify their positions concerning this significant new
IHI}?VX policy. To date; the proposed regulations have not been pub-
ished. - - : ’ .. ‘

Now, thirdly, and finally, we turn to the status of actions taken
by the Federal agencies to assure that only effective drugs are
procured with Federal funds. -~ - ' v

During our last appearance before this subcommittee, we com-
mented on actions taken by DOD, HEW ‘and VA with respect to
the FDA’s pronouncements on drug efficacy. FDA has categorized
drugs as “effective”, “probably effective”, “possibly effective”, and
“ineffective” for one or more therapettic indications claimed on the
drug’s labeling. o ‘ L ‘

Legal action was brought against FDA in an effort to expedite
FDA’s completion of its determinations of drug efficacy under the
Drug Efficacy Study Implementation, which is known as DESI.

In October 1972, the Federal District Court for the District of
Columbia ordered the FDA to meet specific target dates for various
phases of DEST and to submit 6-month status reports to the court
concerning its progress. .

It required the FDA to make final determination on drug efficacy
or to rule on drug sponsors request for hearings, by October 1976.

Senator Nerson. Let us see, who initiated the lawsuit? You say
the Federal District Court ordered the FDA to do certain things?
Who was the complainant ¢ o

Mr. Staats. T will have to ask one of my colleagues, Mr. Chair-
man, ~ ‘

Mr. Anarr. Mr. Chairman, the information T have is it was a
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joint suit by the American Public Health Association and the Na-
tional Council of Senior Citizens. - ) .

Senator Neusox. That was, I take it, to specifically implement
the provisions of the 1962 amendment. =~ - L

Mr. Amarr. I think the thrust of the suit was to require FDA to
speed up the effort and to require the publication of the National
Academy of Sciences evaluational report on drug efficacy.

Senator NewLson. All right, thank you. . )

Mr. StaaTs. As of January, 1974, FDA’s initial ratings on all
but one of the more than 4,000 drug products included in the study
have been published in the Federal Register. , )

However, in accordance with the procedures of DESI, FDA has
revised its ratings for specific drugs as new information is sub-
mitted by the drugs’ sponsors. LR

We inquired into the status of Federal agency actions to insure
that only effective drugs are purchased with Federal funds and
noted that, in general, definitive actions taken have been limited
to direct Federal health care programs. .

We testified in May, 1972, that as of November 18, 1971, the De-
fense Medical Materiel Board had initiated action to stop further
procurement and to eliminate from the supply system all items that
FDA had then pronounced “ineffective” or “possibly effective.” Also,
the surgeons general of the military departments had emphasized
through instructions to medical organizations the DOD. policy on
such grugs, which became effective January 21, 1971. -

- This policy provided that remaining stocks of “ineffective” drugs
withdrawn from the market were to be destroyed or other appropri-
ate action was to be taken to remove them from the inventory. For
items categorized “ineffective,” but awaiting final determination of
FDA, further use of remaining stocks was suspended until the final
status was announced by FDA. P. & T. committees were required
to question all fprescriptlons for “possibly effective” items, but local
procurement of such items could be made if no alternative means
of .therapy was available. ' T '

.On June 11, 1973, DOD announced a revised policy which is a
bit less stringent with respect to the use of “ineffective” and “pos-
sibly effective” drugs. According to DOD, the original policy was
revised because the completion schedule for the DESI had been
substantially extended from that originally anticipated ‘and because
some of the FDA’s more recent drug clessifications would be re-
vised following only minor changes in labeling or formulation ‘of
certain widely-used items, :

The revised policy provides that procurement of items classified
by FDA as “ineffective” and ordered withdrawn from the rarket
continues to be prohibited. However, for items which FDA. classi-
fied as “ineffective” but has permitted to remain on the market
pending final resolution of the items’ classification, the policy per-
mits the Defense Medical Materiel Board, in conjunction with the
Surgeons General, to determine whether centrally-procured stocks
are to be discontinued .

32-814 (Pt 249 O -74-2
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Additionally, the policy authorizes the services to make similar
decisions concerning locally-procured drugs in this category or to
delegate their authority to local P. & T. committees. i ;

The policy also authorizes the procurement of “possibly effec-
tive” drugs when no alternative means of therapy is available and
final determinations on their efficacy are expected to require a long

period of time. However, both central and local procurements of
these items are to be minimized to take into account the possibility
that they may be finally determined by FDA to be “ineffective”
and ordered removed from the market. :

Shortly after June, 1973, the military departments included the
_revised policy:in their instructions for field installations, together

“with up-to-date consolidated listings' of FDA drug safety and
effectiveness data for use by military medical personnel.

The CHAMPUS program places no restriction on the drugs that
may be prescribed, and is not supplied detailed data concerning the

specific drugs that are being paid for. Therefore, DOD could be
paying for drugs under CHAMPUS which would not be procured
for its direct care activities. .o

Since December, 1970, the VA’s policy has continued to be that
all “ineffective” drugs must be removed from VA hospitals except
where special approval of the Central Office Execiitive Committee
on Therapeutic Agents has been obtained. Also, VA’s policy con-
cerning “possibly effective” drugs continues to require that con-
sideration be given to using an alternative product having a higher
FDA effectiveness classification. A ’

To strengthen the policy’s implementation, the VA is furnishing
a list of drugs ordered to be withdrawn from the market to the
P. & T. committees at each VA facility which buys or dispenses
drugs. Further, a current statement of VA ‘policy on the use of
drugs is now being developed by the Central Office Executive
Sommutee on Therapeutic Agents for distribution to all VA facili-
ies, : . . e

. HEW’s policy has been that Federal funds shall not be spent for
“ineffective” drugs except under approved clinical research projects,
or for “possibly effective” drugs except under similar projects or
when alternative means of drug therapy.are not available.

In October, 1971, HEW agencies involved in direct patient care
were instructed to stop procurement and use of such drugs and to

advise their contract physicians of the Department’s policy. These
Instructions remain in effect.

I think T can skip over the next paragraph. . 5
. We sent a letter to the. Administrator, SRS, in May, 1972, bring-
ing the matter to his attention and asking him to advise us con-
" cerning SRS plans for implementing’ the Department’s policy. In
June, 1972, the Administrator told us that a draft of regulations
implementing the Surgeon . General’s 1970 policy had been cleared
in SRS and was being prepared for transmittal to the Secretary for
publication as a proposed rule. The regulation was not published.
Now, we recently initiated a survey of the administration of the
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medicaid drug program, and have already observed that States are
continuing to pay for “ineffective” and “possibly effective” drugs.

For example, in 1 month, September 1973, three States paid an
estimated $692,000 for such drugs. Also, we contacted officials of two
additional States—which were included in our 1972 review—and were
informed that these States had not changed their policy concerning
payment for ineffective and possibly effective drugs and would not do
so until SRS issues its final regulations concerning this matter.

Now, we have again brought this matter to the attention of HEW
in a letter to the Secretary dated February 15, 1974, which we will be
happy to have included in the record at this point. ,

Senator NeLson. We would like to have the letter for the record.

[Testimony resumes at page 9939. The material referred to

follows:]
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UNITED STATES GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20548

MANPOWER AND WELFARE
DIVISION

B-164031(2) , | FEB 15 1974

The Honorable
The Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare

Dear Mr. Secretary:

During our survey of the administration of the Medicaid drug
program, we found that the three States included in the survey
(California, Ohio, and Texas) were expending significant amounts
of funds (portions of which are reimbursed by the Federal Govern-
ment) for prescription drugs that have been declared ineffective
or possibly effective by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA).
The Department of Health, Education, and Welfare (HEW) has not
issued regulations prohibiting the use of Federal funds for the
purchase of ineffective and possibly effective drugs under the
Medicaid program. We believe that HEW should expedite the
issuance of such regulations.

BACKGROUND

The 1962 Amendments (P.L. 87-781) to the Federal Food, Drug-and
Cosmetic Act required that drugs be effective before they can be
approved for marketing. Under these amendments, FDA began evaluat-
ing the effectiveness of all drugs that it had approved for market-
ing under a safety criteria in force before the amendments. After
analysis by the National Academy of Sciences/National Research
Council of the available data relating to the effectiveness of a
drug, FDA publishes in the Federal Register a notice of its initial
classification of the drug as being e%?ective, probably effective,
possibly effective, or ineffective.

. If a drug is not classified as effective, a notice of an
opportunity for a hearing is also published. If interested parties
Justify, on the basis of new evidence, the need for a hearing, one
is held. After the hearings FDA publishes its final determination
of the effectiveness of the drug and declares it to be either
effective or ineffective.
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The criteria for the initial classifications are: (1) effective
meaning that the drug has the purported therapeutic effect; (2) prob-
ably effective meaning that the effectiveness of the drug is probatle,
but additional evidence is required before it can be declared effective;
(3) possibly effective meaning that there is 1ittle evidence of effec-
tiveness; and (4) ineffective meaning that there is no.acceptable
evidence of effectiveness. .

On December 11, 1970, the Surgeon General requested all agencies
within HEW to establish procedures within 45 days to prohibit the use
of Federal funds for the purchase of drug products classified as inef-
fective or possibly effective by FDA. Two exceptions were noted:

--Ineffective and possibly effective drugs could be purchased
for use in approved clinical research projects.

 --Possibly effective drugs could be purchased when no alterna-
tive means of therapy with drugs in the probabiy effective
or effective categories is available.

On October 8, 1971, HEW issuéd a regulation prohibiting expenditure
of Federal funds under its direct care programs for ineffective and pos-
sibly effective drugs except under the two conditions Tisted above. How-
?verédregulations prohibiting such purchases under Medicaid have ‘not been

ssued.

PRIOR GAO REPORT ON EFFECTIVE DRUGS

On May 9, 1972, we issued a letter report to the Administrator,
Social and Rehabilitation Service, HEW, in which we recommended that
regulations to preclude the purchase of ineffective and possibly effec-
tive drugs under Medicaid be issued without further delay. We stated
that about $196,000 had been expended in Ohio during January, April,
July, and October 1970, for 38,000 prescriptions for 106 ineffective
drugs, and that about $99,000 had been expended in I1linois-and -

New Jersey in July and October 1970, for 21,000 prescriptions for
16 ineffective drugs. '

In his reply, dated June 13, 1972, the Administrator stated that
a regulation precluding expenditures for ineffective and possibly effec-
tive drugs under Medicaid was being prepared for transmittal to the
Office of the Secretary, HEW, for publication as a proposed rule. The
proposed regulation has not yet been published. ‘ e

-2-
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B~164031(2)

STATES STILL PAYING FOR INEFFECTIVE
- AND POSSIBLY EFFECTIVE DRUGS

We found that the three States in our current survey were expending
significant amounts for ineffective and possibly effective drugs.’ The
costs and number of prescriptions of ineffective and possibly effective
drugs purchased under each of the three States' Medicaid programs are
presented in the table below. The data for California and Texas is
for September 1973. Because data was not available for Ohio for
September 1973, the data presented is the average monthly figures for
the period September 1972 through August 1973. v

California Ohio Texas

Ineffective:

Cost - '$104,754 $25,700 '$ 81,264

Number of :

- prescriptions (note a) 6,700 15,816

Number of drugs ' 27 80 93
Possibly Effective

Cost 169,767 45,500 264,921

Number of

prescriptions (note a) 8,300 36,863

Number of drugs 77 174 21
Total cost: ‘ $274,521 $71,200° $346,185
Percent of Total Medicaid ’ '

Drug Costs , ‘ 4.4% - 6.6% 11.9%

Note a: Data not obtained

Expenditureé at these monthly levels represent annual costs of about
$8.3 million for ineffective and possibly effective drugs in the three

States..

Nefther Ohio nor Texas have procedures for removing drugs classified
as ineffective or possibly effective from their Medicaid drug formularies.
California has a procedure for removing drugs which have been finally
determined by FOA to be ineffective--a State employee reads the Federal
Register to determine which drugs have been finally classified as Tneffec-
Tive and provides this information to the California Medical and
Therapeutics Committee which has them removed from California's Medicaid

-3 -
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drug formulary. This procedure is apparently not fully effective,
however, because California paid for three drugs in September 1973
which FDA had finally declared ineffective jn March and May 1973.

We also contacted officials in I11inois and New Jersey, which
with Ohio were the States included “in our prior review, who .informed
us that neither State had changed its drug payment policies. The
officials told us that thejr-States would continue to pay for drugs
which had been classified as ineffective and possibly effective, -
until HEW made its final determination on this matter and issued
regulations.

CONCLUSIONS

It has been more than 3 years since the Surgeon General requested
HEW agencies to prohibit the use of Federal funds for the purchase of
ineffective and possibly effective drugs, but regulations have not been
issued for Medicaid. Such regulations should result in more effective
utilization of Federal funds and improved health care of individuals
included under Medicaid, through the substitution of drugs having::
evidence of effectiveness for drugs having little or no evidence of:
effectiveness. ; , B

Since evaluation of specific drugs by FDA also ?pplies to identical
drugs and may be applied to related or similar drugs!; HEW should prepare
and distribute a Tist of all drugs which are identical, related or simi-
lar to drugs declared to be ineffective or possibly effective.

RECOMMENDATIONS

SRS officials told us that a draft of a regulation precluding the
use of Federal funds for ineffective and possibly effective drugs under
Medicaid will be sent to your office shortly for your approval and
publication as a proposed regulation. - We recommend that. you expedite.
publication of the proposed regulation and that, after comments are
received, final regulations be published without delay.

Tan identical, related, or similar drug includes other brands, potencies,
dosage forms, salts, and esters of the same drug moiety as well as of

“-any drug moiety related in chemical structure or known pharmacological
properties. L ‘ :
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We recommend also that you direct the Administrator of SRS, in
conjunction with the Commissioner of FDA, to establish procedures for.
providing to States and drug providers, 1ists of drugs declared to be
ineffective or possibly effective, and Tists of all identical, related,
and similar drugs. :

We are sending copies of this report to the Chairmen, House and
Senate Committees on Appropriations; the Chairmen, House and Senate
Committees on Government Operations, the Chairman, House Committee on
Ways and Means; and the Chairman, Senate Committee on Finance. Copies
.are also being sent to the Director, Office of Management and -Budget.

SinceréTyfyours.
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Mr. Staars. This concludes my prepared statement.

Senator Nerson. Thank you, Mr. Staats.

You stated that the DOD spent $91,400,000, and the Veterans
Administration about $38,100,000 in their central purchasing. The
spent maybe $84 million for drugs at much higher prices: throug!
the Federal Supply Schedule, and more through local purchases
at even higher prices. g o o

Why is it, or is it necessary at all, to spend such a large: per-
centage of the drug purchases, of money on drug purchases at such
high prices? ‘

Mr. Staars.Mr. Ahart will respond.

Mr: Amarr. I think there are several reasons for that, Mr. Chair-
man, : *

In some cases, the volume used of a particular drug product would
not be sufficient to justify the expense involved in bringing it into-
a central management position in a procurement center. You do
have transportation costs involved in shipping it out to the local
station when you bring it in centrally, and the economics of it call
for it to be a local purchase or a supply schedule item.

Secondly, you have certain—— .

Senator Nerson. Well, on that point, we have lots of examples,
and have had for several years off and on; of smaller urchases
being charged at a unit price much lower than large purchases.

Let me read from a speech given last sunimer by Mr. Vincent
Gardner, Chief of Drug Studies Branch, Division of Health Insur-
ance Studies, Office of %{eseareh and Statistics, U.S. Social Security
Administration. i t

Now Mr. Gardner says—and I shall just read an excerpt from
one page of this speech: R : -

A recent pilot study by the Social Security Administration-of drug product
costs to non-government hospitals Showed a wide variation in prices for simi-
lar quantities ‘of the same product, The cost to the hospitals for one manu-
facturer’s antibiotic varied from $29.85 to $92.68 for ‘quantities of 500.The
brice of an anti-infective from another producer varied from $85 per 1,000 to
$216 per 1,000. Or, take another anti-infective. from a .major producer which
ranged in price from. $9 to $43 per 1,000 tablets. Contrary to the conventional
wisdom, industry claims. and  economic -theory, little relationslilp: was found
between order size and piice to the hospitals. In addition; in ‘“instances where
there were:price differentials paid for different quantities, the differential was
often much greater or smaller than would normally be expected on the basis
of usual quantity discounts or- different packing and shipping costs: For ex-
ample, in the case of an -antibiotie, one hospital paid-$89.50 for bottles of 500
in purchasing a total of 2,000 capsules, whereas another hospital paid- $52.50
for bottles of &00 in purchasing 1,500 capsules. So you had a differential in -
quantity of 500 capsules, and yet one was, the one who brought 2,000 capsules
paid $39.50 and the one who brought 2,000 capsules paid $52.50. Excuse me,
the one buying 2,000 capsules paid $89.50;.the one buying 1,500 capsules paid
$52.50. The differential is not explicable on the economic theory.

This from the same producer or hospitals in the same area.

On this basis, it could be concluded that the first hospital receéived a. dis-
. count of $62.60,per 100, simply for :purchasing one bottle. more than the sec-

ond hospital. OF, to put it another way, one. hospital' paid $157.50 for 1,500
capsules, while another paid 50¢ more for an additional 500 T

Now, there are Jots of these examples. -

. Here is an example of a purchase by the Defense Supply Agenc
in which they bought a product at the unit price ofp lg.Sngn Z
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bid; then buying the same drug off the Federal Supply Schedule
from the same supplier, they did not pay $13.89 unit price, they
paid $47.64. v i . .

Is there any reasonable explanation for a differential that huge?

Mr. Amarr. Such examples are certainly well documented in
these series of hearings. And as you know, Mr. Chairman, there are
a lot of differentials in prices given to different hospitals. And in
our review, certainly we found differences in prices given to the
Veterans Administration vis-a-vis the Department of Defense for
like quantities of the same item in relatively the same time frame.

I think the explanation for this in the hospital situation that you
mentioned just a moment ago and the DOD situation is partly at-
tributable to just a different degree of aggressiveness in negotiating
prices on the part of the various hospitals and on the part of the
Veterans Administration and DOD. . ' .

A certain amount of it is certainly due to the use of competitive
contracting by one agency and non-competitive procurements by
another agency for the same items.

We did make a comparison of 13 sets of purchases between the
Veterans Administration and DOD, where one of them had gone
competitively and the other had gone negotiated with the sole source,
and in 11 of those cases there were significant differences in the
prices paid—favoring, of course, lower prices when competition was
. obtained in the procurement. : »

But I do not think we are in a position to explain all of the differ-
ences which you have put on the record, particularly between one
hospital and another hospital when the buys were made from the
same manufacturer. I think part of that is explained by a different
degree of effectiveness in negotiating with the manufacturer to get
the best price that they can. ,

Now, we did include in our report, on page 87 of our report, the
comparison that we made of purchases-under the Federal Supply
Schedule, with those that were purchased on a central basis. And
the range we found is"“in some cases a very slight difference be-
tween the price paid centrally versus the Federal Supply Schedule;
but the range went all.the way up to about 360. percent higher on
the Federal Supply Schedule for certain items, with an overall
average, I believe, of about 74 percent differential. '

Senator Nerson. Well, T am looking at another DOD example :
for nitrofurantoin 100 milligram tablets ordered from the same
company in bottles of 1,000, the same product from different com-
‘panies. On bid the unit price for these tablets, 100 milligram—a
- bottle of 1,000 was $11.65. For exactly the same compound brought
from the Federal Supply Schedule, the unit price was $1;70.

- Well, it is just inconceivable that you could have that much differ-
ence in the unit price accounted for by packaging, shipping, and
individual handling. Tt is a differential o? almost $160. ;

Now, would you not suppose that a substantial purchaser, such
as the DOD’s Defense Supply Agency, when they had a successful
bidder, could also make an agreement right then that if they

needed some supplementary supplies, that it could be purchased at
some reasonable markup ¢
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Can you think of any way to justify a markup of $11.65 unit price
to $170°¢ C :

1;$'Ir. Amnart. Offhand, the difference is quite striking. I really
would not know how to explain it or how to justify it. It is possible
that if it is a truly competitive situation, the manufacturer might
find it to his advantage to discount rather drastically off the catalog
price in order to get the additional business which, if he does not
get it, will go to someone else. The manufacturer is not really in
the same kind of a situation as when his products are listed in the
Federal Supply Schedule since there often is no competition for the
items included in the schedule. :

But again I would say that is a rather startling differential, and
I think it would be very difficult certainly for us to explain it or for
anyone else to explain that differential at this point.

Senator Nerson. All right. ,

Now, here are two interesting cases: One is a purchase of erythro-
mycin tablets, same company; off the Federal Supply Schedule, the
unit price $8.90, locally purchased the unit was $7.79. That is totally
illogical, isn’t it?

Mr. Aumarr. Well, T am not familiar with the details of the local
purchase, Mr. Chairman, or what might have been involved in it.
It does seem contrary to the logical situation. .

Senator Nerson. Well, here is one for tetracycline: Off the Fed-
eral Supply Schedule the price is $27 unit price; locally purchased,
same company’s product, $13; so they are paying less than half as
much for local purchase as they are paying off the Federal Supply
Schedule, '

There has got to be something wrong with that, does it not?

Mr. Amarr. Well, T am really not in a position to comment on it,
except it does not seem to be consistent with the logic of the Fed-
eral Supply Schedule System. :

Senator NerLsox. They ought to be able to purchase locally the whole
thing and give up the purchasing agency if they are going to pay
twice as much, i

Mr. Staars. I might interject here and say that we see great
problems in the Federal Supply Service, generally beyond the area
of Federal drug procurement. We have studies going on now in our
Procurement Division, looking at the operation of the Federal
Sugply Schedule. We think there are very serious problems.

Senator Nerson. Well, to me it is just incredible to end up paying
twice as much off the Federal Supply Schedule as you Woulg i};ave
on the local purchase where the highest price logically should be.

Mr. Stasrs. There has been a general presumption—and this is
the substance of the issue that we are looking at—that an item on
the Supply Schedule which normally carries a 10 or 15 percent
discount is a good buy. In many instances we think you can get a
much better buy by competitive bidding; and this is the issue that
we are looking at generally with respect to the GSA’s procurement
supply program.

Senator Nerson. Are you also looking at the question of the speci-
fications that will be drawn in competitive bidding by the Federal
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agencies, Defense Supply Agency, and the Veterans’ Administra-
tion, in which if you draw up the specifications in a particular way,
there is only one bidder or only one person to negotiate with. i
I think it is an important point to look at because you can sit
there and draw your specs, such as in the buying of tetracycline.
If you are drawing up specs with some variations for tetracycline,
you can end up getting a very expensive brand name of the com-
pound tetracycline that has some modifications in the way it is
compounded although it may have the same therapeutic effect. If
you put the specs. right, there will be only one company that can
meet it; and that issue has been raised before. I think 1t is worth
looking at. .

Mr. Staats. Ten to 15 percent discount may or may not repre-
sent a very significant discount in relation to what you might be
able to get by developing specifications and then going for a
broader-based competition in procurement.

Senator NrLson. Now, what, if any, arrangements have been made
between the DOD and the VA to coordinate and establish require-
ments prior to negotiation of drug contracts? )

Mr. Anarr. This is one of the things we commented on in our
report, Mr. Chairman. At the time of our work in this area very
little was being done to coordinate requirements into joint purchas-
ing arrangements even though that seemed to be the appropriate
way to go. ‘ ' .

Now, hopefully, as a result of our report and our recommendations
and the general agreement of the agencies with those recommenda-
tions, and the corresponding OMB study, and the implementation of
what came out of that study, that there will be much better co-
ordination, determination of requirements, and consolidated pur-
chasing for the total Federal needs as opposed to each agency going
out on its own and doing its own job. o

Senator NeLsoN. As of now they have not reached such an agree-
ment? Or are they in the midst of negotiating some agreement or
coordinating their activities?

Mr. Anarr. Well, as the Comptroller General mentioned in his
testimony, the OMB study is with the various agencies for com-
ment now; and hopefully within a short period of time they will
reach agreement on just what is going to be done in this area.

Senator NeLson. And then, what actions, if any, have been taken
to transfer the quality assurance program to the FDA ¢ '

Mr. Amarr. It is my understanding that all three agencies-are in
general agreement with the proposition that one agency could do
a better coordinating job in this area. The Food and Drug Admin-
istration, I believe, has requested certain information from both
the Veterans Administration and the Department of Defense, and
should be, within a fairly short period of time, able to define con-
ceptually what they are going to do in this area and start imple-
mentation. , .

Senator Nerson. Will that mean that the program for assuring
quality will be exclusively within the Food and Drug Administra-
tion, or will we continue to have duplication with the Veterans
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Administration and the Defense Department, with their own in-
spectors and so forth ¢ ‘ N ) . L

Mr. Auarr. Well, I think if the intent of our recommendation is
carried through, it will mean that the quality assurance function
will rest solely with the Food and Drug Administration.

Senator NeLson. Well, does it appear that they are proceeding to
implement a policy of that kind ? B

Mr. Anarr. Every indication that we have is that they are mov-
_ing in that direction and are trying to reach the agreements necessary
and move toward the consolidation of that‘ function. Yes, Mr.
Chairman. ' ‘

Senator NevsoN. The GAO has no doubt that the FDA has the
capacity to guarantee or the capacity to carry out an effective qual-
ity assurance program? o

Mr. Amarr. Well, I think certainly if they are not now in a
position to meet the requirements of the Department of Defense
and VA.
- Senator NeLson. If they are what? ; ‘

Mr. Amarr. If they are not now.in a position to do all of the
things that DOD and VA feel are necessary to meet their require-
ments, I feel certain that the potential is there for them to acquire
that capacity and to carry it out. -

Senator NeLson. What does that mean?-

Are you suggesting that the VA and the Department of Defense
carry on a quality assurance program that is somehow superior to
what FDA now does? - ,

Mr. Auarr. No. What I am suggesting, Mr. Chairman, is that the
Department of Defense does have quite a number of specific require-
ments that go beyond the requirements for drugs which are now
available to the general public in terms of. i
_ Senator Nerson. Well, what kind of requirements? :

Mr. Anarr. In terms of color tolerances, indication of deteriora-
tion of the drug, packaging requirements—these types of things that
will have to be built into the FDA program if they are going to
meet the specific requirements of the Department of Defense,

Senator Nerson. Well, 1 guess we will be going into that later;
but do those requirements have anything to do with the effectiveness
of the drug? o ‘,

Mr. Amarr. Well, T think we are talking here about meeting the
specific military requirements which are above and beyond what
would be suitable for the general public. et e :

Senator Nerson. I cannot quite understand what you mean above
and beyond. Every witness we have had from the medical and
science fields have stated that if you are meeting USP standards,
that is as high a quality—as high as there is, -

What quality would they have specified that is super-duper ?

Mr. AnarT. Mr. Crowther has some examples to illustrate what
I am talking about, Mr. Chairman, that might help clarify the
situation. ,

Mr, CROWTHE?.. Mr. Chairman, in a couple of cases, particularly
one that the military brought to our attention-—it was called co-
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caine penicillin C for aqueous injection, 300,000 units. The original
technigal requirements were the FDA and USP monographs. There
was a field complaint that arose in DOD that involved the syringe-
ability problem. It was reported the material could not be aspirated
from the bottle or could not be injected from the syringe. Addi-
tionally, there were some vials that were overfilled.

" In order to avoid this they had to have a higher degree of con-
sistency. For example, they added a standard that when the drug
was reconstituted, each milliliter of the resulting suspension would
contain not less than 280,000, not more than 380,000 USP penicillin
units, and when reconstituted and shaken for 30 seconds it should
" flow freely without binding with the contents of the final containers
or aspirated through a 22 gage hypodermic needle using a suitable
syringe. . .

Th:y found a particular problem with the drug in their use. Now,
whether this had to do with the specific locations, temperatures,
many other things, it is not obvious. But nonetheless, in their field
use they did identify these kinds of problems that required a higher
degree of consistency and more specific tolerances. ‘

Senator NELsoN. So you are not talking about the question of the
quality of the drug. You are talking about problems that may arise
from being shipped to different parts of the world, or shelved in a
iropifal climate versus a moderate one, or subjected to much rougher

andling.

TIs thagt the kind of thing that we are talking about?

Mr. CrowTHER. Generally that is the kind of specific requirements
that they would have to include rather than ones dealing with
effectiveness,

Mr. Goroon. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question at this point?

Senator NeLson. Yes. .

Mr. Goroon. In your report of March 29, 1973, you stated that,
“FDA has not always enforced aggressively compliance with good
manufacturing practices by many drug producers.”

In fact, an employee of the Department of Defense, Mr. Max Fein-
berg and also Mr. Stetler of the Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association, have used quotations from your report to show that
the FDA cannot be depended on to insure that only high quality
drugs are produced.

. In this connection, then, can you tell us if the recommendations
In_your March 29, 1978, report have been accepted and are being
followed by the Food and Drug Administration? °

Mr. Asuarr. To our knowledge, Mr. Gordon, all six of the recom-
mendations we-included in that report have been accepted by the
Food and Drug Administration, and action has been taken to
implement those recommendations.

So I think the Food and Drug Administration is in full agree-
ment with the need for. improvement in those specific areas.

Mr. Goroon. And they are doing something about it?

. Mr. Amarr. They have implemented all six of the recommenda-
tions. T think there is one that, just because of the timing of it, will
not be in full implementation until about: April; and that is the
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registration requirement. But beyond that there is total agreement
between the Food and Drug Administration and ourselves on the
need to take these actions, and FDA has taken actions. )

Mr. Goroon. HEW’s Secretary Weinberger said that his Depart-
ment will adopt the policy for reimbursement for drugs under
medicare and medicaid at the lowest generic price available. Do you

~See any reason why this same policy should not be applied by the
DOD to its CHAKIPU.S program—that is, the DOD’s home pro-
gram—or the VA to its home program ? ; ‘ :

Mr. Amarr. Well, I think certainly the principle involved in the
Secretary’s policy decision would be applicable to the CHAMPUS
program and to the Veterans Administration’s home town pharmacy
program, even though they are both smaller volume programs than
the programs the ecretary is dealing with. But in principle, the
same policy should be applicable. ; A

Senator NerLson. I guess that is all the questions I have. -

S Thank you very much for you very valuable testimony, Mr.

taats, ' Y ﬁ S

Do you have any questions, Mr, Adams? : AT

Mr. Apams. Just one, Mr, Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Staats, it appears from your testimony that neither DOD,
HEW, or Social Security Administration require that formularies
list drug items by -their official, generic or nonproprietary names,
while in some cases they are preferred or recommended.

Would you share witi)l, the committee your thoughts as to whether
you think this is a wise course of action, or whether the use .of the
- generic, nonproprietary name should be mandatory, where possible,
in this program and: other Federal programs? : L
- Mr. Staats. In general we do favor this, and we have previously
testified here to that effect. As to whether it could be made manda-
tory or not at this point in time I would like to ask my colleagues
to express a judgment on that point. ‘

. I think that would come down to a question of practicability. But
In _general, we do support the concept.

Mr. Amarr. Yes. I think many formularies in use in hospitals do
use both the generic name in all cases and the brand names if ap-
plicable; and certainly, I think we would, as the Comptroller Gen-
- eral has stated, agree with that principle, that the generic identifi-
- cation of the drug should 'be included in the formularies. oE ,
- Mr. Apams. On page '19° you discuss the. fact that DOD has -
placed no restrictions on drugs that may be prescribed under the
CHAMPUS program. T take 1t then that under this program DOD
could and probably is p‘agmg for drugs already determined to be
ineffective or possibly ineffective by the FDA. . :

Is that-an accurate understanding ? o
. Mr. Srasrs. That would be correct. That would be a correct’
Interpretation of our statement, yes, sir. c .

Mr. Apams. And one last question, ey S :

On pages 4 and 5 you discuss pending legislation that deal with
medicare and medicaid and the possible future Ppassage of a na-
tional health insurance plan. Later on in your testimony you point
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out that under the Social Rehabilitation Services program the
States accumulate certain data regarding specific drug usage, but
this data is not normally provided to the SRS. .

Would you recommend that in contemplation of additional Fed-
eral health programs and their being administered by the State,
that the State begin now to set up a reporting scheme to provide
. this kind of information on specific drugs to the Social ,Rehablh-
tation Services group and to other Federal agencies?. :

Mr. Amarr. Well, I think any information of this type that you
can get back to the Federal program managers will be. useful. T
think it is particularly important at this point in time, based on the
survey we are doing in the medicaid program, where you have a
state of transition involved in getting “ineffective” drugs off the
market, that the Federal Government be apprised and take such
steps as it can take to make sure that it is not reimbursing for
drugs which have been determined to be “ineffective” by the Food
and Drug Administration.’ ' . o

Now, whether you could justify economically a very detailed
reporting system by all of the States, I think we would -have some
serious question on that as a long-term proposition.

Mr, Apams. I just wanted to make sure that I have it right. As
it currently stands, the States do not report this. And if I é¢an
understand the testimony correctly, you mentioned that the total
Federal drug bill may increase in excess of $1 billion; and it is
that $1 billion éxpenditure and keeping track of the drugs that are
being paid for, especially the iheﬁgctive drugs, about which I am
concerned. o o - .

I am simply suggesting that perhaps before we reach that crunch
we set up some kind of mechanism whereby the States can report,
and out of necessity, detailed information.

Mr. Aurarr. Perhaps Mr. Crowther would like to comment in more
detail on that.

Mr. Crowtuer. Let me add to that just a little bit. There are
several ways actually that you could set up & control mechanism to
avoid the problem. You can set up as a condition of participation
by each hospital, for example, under the medicare and medicaid
program, that such diugs ‘will not even be included in the hospital
formulary or in the hospital pharmacies. So if they are not in the
hospital at all, they cannot be administered to medicare and med-
icaid patients: That is probably one of the best means of control.

A second would be to provide some system of reporting and con- -
trol, or at least testing of the controls at the State levels, particularly
in the State programs of the medicaid type. Rather than have ail
of that type of information come centrally into Washington some-'
- where and, in effect, create just a deluge of paperwork here, an

effective control system and mechanism should probably be imple-
mented at the hospital level or at the State level where the admin-
istration of the care is actually carried on. There are several means
by which that can be done, and I am sure they are under considera-
tion at this point, rather than:necessarily reporting all of that data.
For programs as large as these, this would be just a huge amount
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of data being reported into Social Security Administration or the
Social Rehabilitation Service. ,-

Mr. Apams. I see. . . : o

Then that control should be in the field. Is that. what you are
suggesting. But it still should be controlled, N ~

Mr. CrowrrEer. Yeés. It still should be gontrolled.

Mr. Apams. Thank you, Mr. Chairian.

That’s all T have. , o

Mr. Staars. Mr. Chairman, may I just say this before we con-
clude. As you can sée from the figures we have presented here today,
the growth in the Federal costs involved in drug procurement has
been very dramatic over the last few years. The potential is here
for additional expenditures such as the inclusion of payment for
certain drugs under the medicare program and the possibility of
national health insurance. : )

This subject takes on even greater significance than it has had in
the past, so we commend you for your interest in this area, We
want to continue to do work in this field. We think some real
progress has been made since we last appeared before your com-
mittee. : _

We think also there is a great deal of potential for savings here
and improved quality of drug care. ‘ :

Senator Nerson. There have been, as you know, proposals made
and amendments offered on the floor that would cover all drugs in
medicare, medicaid, or other proposals to cover in a more limited
fashion drugs that are used on a continuing basis.

But in any event, if you would cover them all, you are looking
~ at figures estimated at a couple of billion dollars. Have you done

any studying or made any computations to indicate how much
money would be saved if you achieved the ideal of purchaging all
drugs at the lowest price of that compound, whether it was brand
oglggneric name—the lowest price of that compound that was avail-
able

Do you have any notion as to what that might mean in the pro-
gram of the size we are now involved in? I realize it is a growing
program. T B SIS

Mr. Sraats. We' can do it for individual drugs, but to take the
whole universe, it would be a very, very major undertaking. to try
to develop anything like a reasonable estimate.

Mr. Ahart or Mr, Crowther may have:something to add to that.

Mr. Anagr. No. We have not really tried to come up with any
figure like that; and I am not sure it would be possible, Mr. Chair-
man. As you indicated by some of the statistics on individual trans-
actions that you have put on the record here, sometimes you really
have a difficult time even finding out what is the lowest price at
which a particular product,mi%lht be available. : S 7

Mr. Staams. I _Personally think if you can take several good
examples, the. point is' made without having to go through the
effort to come up with an overall total. "

“Senator Nezsow. I suppose we do not even know what amount—

or do we—what amount of money is spent under Federal programs
for the, or, 25 or 40 most widely prescribed drugs. - prog

32-814 (Pt 24} O~ 74- 3
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When we ‘are looking at the amount.of money spent on Federal
programs, do we know what drugs it is being spent on? )

Mr. Amarr. That information could be developed for the direct
Federal procurements. I think it would be(vier{r difficult, because
of some of the considerations Mr. Crowther spelled out, to develop
it for the indirect procurements that the Federal Government par-
ticipates in. ; .

Mr. Staars. This would, I think, be a useful exercise on the
direct procurement. I think that would give you some indication
then, by extrapolation, of what you could save on the indirect pro-
curements. - , . .

Senator Nrirson. When you refer to direct procurement, you are
talking about procurement by negotiation, procurement by bids, and
also procurement of drugs at the local level by a veterans hospital
or a military hospital in one part of the country from a local sup-
plier to supply some need they have. If you have that breakdown,
1t might be of some significance. ‘

Mr. Sraars. Let us explore that, if we may, and let you know
what we think would be a feasible analysis.

Senator Nerson. It would be interesting to see. I do not know if
you could extrapolate from that.. But we know what the 50 most
widely prescribed drugs are. There might be some correlation be-

tween what the Government buys directly of the 50 most widely
prescribed drugs and what is purchased locally under medicare and .
medicaid programs; by prescription of a local physician filled by a

local pharmacist. I do not know, but it might not be too difficult to
figure that out. ‘ :

Well, thank you very much, Mr. Staats.

Mr. Sraats. Thank you very much. \

Senator NEerson. Our next witness is Dr. Alexander Schmidt,
Commissioner, Food and Drug Administration. v

Dr. Schmidt, the committee is pleased to have you appear here

today. You may present your statement and your material however
you desire.! - :

STATEMENT OF HON. ALEXANDER M. SCHMIDT, M.D., COMMIS-
SIONER, FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION, ACCOMPANIED BY
J. RICHARD CROUT, M.D., DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF DRUGS;
BERNARD T. LOFTUS, DEPUTY DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF COMPLI-
ANCE, BUREAU OF DRUGS; AND ROBERT C. WETHERELL, ACTING
DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE SERVICES

Dr. Scammr. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. .

‘We are delighted to be here this morning to appear before you on
a_topic which, of course, is extremely important to the Food and
Drug Administration. _

. I would like to introduce: my colleagues here with me. On my
Immediate right is Dr. Richard Crout, Director of the Bureau of
- Drugs. To his right, is Mr. Bud Loftus, Deputy Director of the Office

! See Information beginning at page 10638,
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of Compliance in the Bureau of Drugs. To my left is Mr. Bob
Wetherell, who is in charge of our Office of Legislative Services.
Mr. Peter Barton Hutt, our General Counsel, who usually accom-
panies me on these occasions, could not be here. He will try to get
here later, but is now attending another Senate activity.

My statement is a little long. As I go through, I will try to
summarize some areas, if that is acceptable to the committee. .

Senator NELsoN. You go ahead and present it in any way you
wish. We have the time if you desire to read it, and we shall have
some questions to ask as you proceed.

Dr. Scumir. All right.

We are pleased to discuss our drug quality assurance programs
and the effect these programs may have on other Government agencies
involved in drug procurement and reimbursement.

Let me begin by stating that the pharmaceutical industry must
bear the primary responsibility for assuring the production of high
quality drugs. The Food and Drug Administration’s role is to as-
sure that manufacturers meet their responsibility. We do so by set-

‘ting appropriate standards for the manufacture of drugs and by
carrying out surveillance activities such as factory inspections and
analyses of selected products. When firms do not meet their re-
sponsibilities, the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act provides
us with authority to take certain measures to bring about correction
and/or to remove offending products from the market. '

Our quality assurance programs for drugs are aimed at providing
optimal assurance of drug quality to all physicians and consumers.
These programs employ a major portion of our field manpower
available for drug work and range in approach from continuing
surveys of the manufacturing practices of selected drug firms to
intensified targeted programs such as certification of specific prod-
ucts or plant inspection and analyses involving a certain product
with identified problems. : :

The Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act requires inspection of
every drug firm at least once every 2 years. In gscal year 1973, we
inspected 2,700 registered human drug establishments and made
some 7,000 inspections of registered and related drug establishments.

Senator NEewson. Doctor, you mentioned 2,700 establishments.
How many are there in the United States that manufacture drugs?

Dr. Scamiwr. Well, counting all registered establishments of all
kinds for all drug products, about 14,000 have registered during the
biennium of 1971 to 1973. This is a very inclusive number, however.

Senator NeLsoN. Are these both prescription and nonprescription
establishments? :

Dr. Scemmr. Yes, sir. These include companies of all sizes that
make prescription drugs, nonprescription drugs, food and bulk
drugs, animal drugs, and so forth. '

Senator Nrrson. Do you inspect only those that manufacture
prescription drugs, or do you inspect those that manufacture both
prescription and nonprescription ¢ .

Dr. Scamivr. Well, as I just said, the requirement is, as you know
from various speeches and remarks that qhave been made, the re-
quirement is that we inspect all firms at least once every 2 years,
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We find it necessary to set up a priority system and pay most atten-
tion to those firms that produce most of the drugs in the country. At ‘
the top of our list are those large firms that produce 95 percent of
the prescription items in the country. . . .

The number of inspections that I mentioned includes inspections
of 100 percent of the firms in the country with business over $10
million a year that produce prescription drugs.

Senator Nerson. What do you mean, inspection 100 percent? The
law requires you to inspect them all once every 2 years, does it not?

Dr. Scaminr. Yes, sir. ‘ '

Senator NELson. Do you meet that requirement? :

Dr. Scamr. No, sir, we do not, and I do not think that we ever
could for a number of reasons. Certainly, we would miss one firm
every 2 years, and, therefore, we would not meet the statutory re-
quirement, by definition.

We must have a flexible policy of priority inspections. When we
do identify a very large problem in an important drug, we must be
free to make as many inspections of one particular plant or one
group of plants in a year as might be needed to correct the problem.

A good example of this, for example, is the large volume parental
industry that had a problem with manufacturing sterile products. .
This is, of course, a critcal problem, and we mounted an intensive
program in this particular industry. We inspect many of the plants
five or six times in 1 year if necessary, and some we do not get to,
within the 2-year period. : :

Senator NErLsoN. Let me put it another way.

- What percentage of the prescription drugs that go into the mar-
ketplac_%, what percentage of those drugs do you inspect once every
2 years

Is it 95, 98, 90 or some other percentage?

Dr. Scamior. Our best estimate is 95 percent, sir.

Senator NersoN. You are saying that companies producing 95
percent of all of the prescription drugs that go into the marketplace
are inspected at least once every 2 years?

Dr. Scamior. Yes, sir.

Senator NEerson. What about that other 5 percent? Are those
producers never inspected, or inspected once in 8 or 4 or 5 years?
Do you have any figure on it?

. Dr. Scumir. Well, they are programed by our field force for
inspection as soon as can be done. We have established, partially in
response to the GAO report you just heard discussed, a system in
which we monitor all firms and notify the field of those that have not.
been inspected within 114 years, then 2 years, then about 214 years, so
that when a firm is not inspected within the 2-year period, it will
move to the top of the priority listing of our inspectors.

Senator NeLso~. So it will get inspected within what period ?

Dr. Scamipr. Within 2 years.

: Sen?ator Nerson. Two years after the expiration of the first 2
years

If T understood you, you said that when one has not been in-
spected within the 2 years, they go into top priority.
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Dr. Scammr. We would then put it at the top of the priority list
and inspect it immediately. .

Senator Nerson. Well, then I do not——

Dr. Scammr. The result of this is that all firms should then be
inspected within the 2l4-year period. We would estimate that for
these firms that we are talking about, the system will pick up 100
percent of them within a 214-year period. Our aim is to hit them
all within a 2-year period. ) o

Senator NrrsoN. So you are saying that within a 214-year period,
you inspect the firms that produce 100 percent of the drugs in this
country ?

Dr. Scammr. Yes, sir. :

Senator NeLsonx. Do your records show the names of the firms
in all of the United States and that at least once every 214 years,
every single one of them which produces prescription drugs is in-
spected by the FDA?

Dr. Scamr, The firms are all on a computer system, and a com-
puter can kick out for us the firms that have not been inspected
within a 2-year period, and then within the immediate 6-month
period, then, we would move to inspect all firms. ,

The concern that has been expressed by the PMA, and my con-
cern, frankly, is that there may be some small, vary small firms that
might need inspection more than some of the large quantity firms,
and that we might be missing some of these firms. Qur data show that
of the very small firms—and we classify those as being firms doing
less than $500,000 business a year-—we are only seeing about half of
those within a 2-year period. We will now do better with these firms.

Senator NerLson. All right. _ :

Please proceed. o

Dr. Scamior. We really wish to determine whether drug manu-
facturers are following what the law refers to as current good
manufacturing practices. And as you know, GMP’s are spelled out
in our regulations and serve to guide our inspectors when they review
plant operations.

In addition to providing routine surveillance on a scheduled
basis, GMP inspections may be made on a selective basis, as I
mentioned a minute ago. We often schedule inspections as a result
of information obtained from our own product analysis or other
reports that come to us of defective products. A pending New Drug
Application or a request for certification of an antibiotic by a firm
may also trigger an inspection, since a determination of compli-
ance with GMP’s is a required condition for approval. :

Senator Nerson. You mean this is a request from a company
for certification to produce the antibiotic? ‘

Dr. Scammr. Yes, sir. ‘ ‘

Senator Nerson. All of its production would subsequently be
batch tested by the FDA anyway ¢ o

Dr. Scamior. That is correct.

Senator Nerson. But you require a;»prior( certification of good

~ manufacturing practices before you even permit the company to
produce an antibiotic? C

Is that correct?
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Dr. Scamipr. That is correct, and this inspection is a very thor-
ough inspection of their actual manufacturing practices. i

A second basic approach to assuring the quality of drugs is a
monitoring program involving the sampling and analysis of mar-
keted drugs to determine their adherence to compendial standards,
as well as standards established in the NDA'’s. L )

Criteria used in selecting drugs for examination include: Their

therapeutic significance; the complexity of compounding—for exam-
~ ple, some drug may have just a very small amount of the active
ingredient in its final form; the history of that particular drug

roduct.

P The objectives of the program are to: Identify defective batches
of drug products and remove these from the marketplace;. help
determine the reasons for batch failures and assure that the manu-
turing procedures are corrected to eliminate these problems; pro-
vide a means for measuring changes in the uality of drugs and.
the relationship of such ‘changes to actions that the FDA might
take; and provide a statistically valid evaluation of the quality of
selected drugs under study.

The analytical work for this program is carried out in our
St. Louis laboratory or in one of our 18 field laboratories. Where
feasible, drugs of similar composition are assigned to one labora-
tory for analysis, This increases laboratory efficiency by permitting
the use of specialized and mass production techniques.

During the last fiscal year, we analyzed over 9,000 human drug
samples. During the current fiscal year, we programed for analysis
of 15,000 samples of human drugs.”In general, we have found that
only a small percentage—and by small we mean 1 to 114 percent
overall—of the drugs analyzed are defective. And by defective, we
mean that they do not meet all of the compendial standards,

Now, those that are defective are followed up by our field officers
to remove them from the market and to ascertain the cause of the
defect. Also, we publish the results of our drug quality surveys in
-the FDA Drug Compliance Information Letter, and with your
permission, I would like to submit a copy of this letter for the record.!

hen our monitoring activities reveal problems with an entire
class or type of drug, specific intensive programs are established.
Our recent efforts to assure di[foxin content uniformity and dis-
solution and sterility of large volume parenteral solutions are exam-
ples of such programs. ‘ o
. In 1970, to assure digoxin content uniformity, we established an
industrywide voluntary certification program. Until a firm demon-
strated that it could consistently manufacture digoxin in compli-
ance with standards, it had to obtain a batch-by-batch analysis and
FDA release prior to marketing. _

Vhen we later received information concerning variation in bio-
availability—as opposed to the earlier content problem of digoxin
manufactured by different firms and a new U.SI? Pharmacopeia, or
~USP, dissolution rate standard was adopted, we instituted a certifica-

1 See pages 10657-10672.
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tion program similar to that employed in the content uniformity
roblem. ' :

P We put forth new regulations pertaining to the marketing of
digoxin which became effective on January 22, 1974, And once again,
with your permission, I would submit a copy of these regulations
for the record.! o o

The regulations require batch-by-batch certification of digoxin
until the firm demonstrates that its product consistently meets the
new USP dissolution standards. These regulations also require that
all firms intending to continue the marketing of digoxin must pre-
sent evidence of ‘bioavailability within 180 days after filing such
notice of intent.

- Senator NELsoN. Are you able to assure that all digoxin now going
into the marketplace meets the USP standards, the new USP
standards? ,

Dr. Scummr. Yes, sir, we feel so. We worked with the industry
to recall the defective products over the last few weeks, and we
believe that the new program will give every assurance that the
digoxin being marketed will meet the new standards.

Senator NerLson. How many digoxin products were in the market-
place when this issue was raised about lack of content uniformity and
bioavailability ? . : '

How many firms were in the marketplace ?

- Dr. Scamipr. Dr. Crout was on top of this. : B
Dr. Crovur. If you would allow me a little leeway with the num-
bers—— , y .
Senator Nerson. Yes. And if you want to submit for the record
a correction and the names of the companies and the names—the
trade names of those that had trade names—I would like to have it

for the record at this point. :

But you go ahead and off the cuff tell me.

Dr. Crovur. Fine. : : '
. The problem with inconsistent tablet uniformity was discovered
In 1969, and at that time there were, as I recall, 44 firms manufac-
turing digoxin. : . : :

[The information referred to follows:]

D160XIN MANUFACTURERS

American Pharmaceutical Co., Hillside, N.J.
Banner Gelatin Products, Chatsworth, Calif.
Barr Laboratories, Tnec., Northvale, N.J.

Bell Pharmacal Corp., Greenville, S.C.

Burroughs Wellcome Co., Inc., Triangle Park, N.C.,
Blueline Chemical Co., St. Louis, Mo.

Cord Laboratories, Inc., Detroit, Mich.

J. Davis Laboratories, Inc., Palisades, Park, N.J.
J. W. 8. Delavau Co., Philadelphia, Pa. -

Endo Laboratories, Ine, Wilmington, Del. .
Halsey Drug Co., Brooklyn, N.Y. -
Heather Drug Co., Cherry Hill, N.J.

E. ‘W..Heun Co., St. Louis, Mo. )
KASCO-EFCO, d.ba. E. FOUGERA, Hicksville, N.Y.

1 See page 10673,
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Ketchum Laboratories, Amityville, N.Y.

Lakeside Labs., formerly Davies-Rose-Hoyt, Needham, Mass.
Lannett. Co., Philadelphia, Pa.” .

Lederle Laboratories, Pearl River, N.Y. -

Marshall Pharmacal Corp., South Hackensack, N.J.

Parke, Davis & Co., Detroit, Mich.

Park Laboratories, Inc., Fredonia, Wis.

Premo Pharmacéutical, South Hackensack, N.J.

Philips Roxane Labs, Columbus; Ohio. ..

Rexall Drug Co., St. Louis, Mo.

Rondex Laboratories, Gutenberg, N.J.

Stanley Drug Products, Ine.,, Portland, Oreg.

ICN Pharmaceuticals, formerly Strong Cobb Arner, Cincinnati, Ohio,
Tablicaps, Inc, Franklinville, N.J. :
Towne-Paulsen & Co., Inc.,, Monrovia, Calif.

Vale Chemical Company, Allentown, Pennsylvania.
Vita-Fore Products Co., Ozone Park, N.Y. °

Vitarine Co., Springfield Gardens, N.Y.

. West-Ward, Inc, Bronx, N.Y. :

“‘Wyeth Labs, Philadelphia, Pa. .

Zenith Laboratories, Inc., Northvale, N.J.

STATUS REPORT DIGOXIN CERTIFICATION PROGRAM—APRIL 9, 1974

On Januar§‘22, 1974, Regulation 21 CFR 130.51, “Digoxin Products for Oral
Use; Conditions for Marketing” was published in the Federal Register setting

forth FDA's position regarding the conditions for the continued marketing or-

oral digoxin produets. The reguldation; which became effective on the date of
publication, has the. following requirements for oral digoxin products:

1. Declared all oral digoxin products to be new drugs.

2. Requires submission of ANDA, including bioavailability tests for all oral
digoxin products. - )

3. Requires a mandatory, FDA certification program based on dissolution
testing ll)y NCDA. No oral digoxin product may now be released without FDA
approval, )

4. Requires recall of any previously marketed batch of digoxin tablets

found to fail USP dissolution specifications.
A meeting was held on January 21, 1974, at the Parklawn Building prior to
publication of the Federal Register announcement to advise the industry of the
status and importance of the program and to enlist their cooperation for its
suceess.” : .

The current status of the certification program is as follows:

PREVIOUSLY MARKETED BATCHES

1. One hundred and fourteen (114) previously marketed batches of digoxin
from twenty-seven .(27) manufacturers have been tested for dissolution and
the results reported to the manufacturers. o :

2. Thirty-four (84) manufacturer batches representing fifteen (15) manu-
facturers and fourteen (14) distributor batches representing ten (10) distribu-
tors have been found to fail the requirements of the Federal Register, state-
ment and removed from the market place by. recalls.

BATCHES SUBJECT TO PREMARKETING CERTIFICATION

1. Thirty-four (84) @igoxin manufacturers are involved in the program.

2. Twenty-one (21) batches from five (5) manufacturers have been certified
by FDA and released for marketing. . :

8. One (1) manufacturer has submitted four (4) consecutive passing batches
for each of its three (3) digoxin dosage strengths and has been. temporarily
released from the certification program. ‘

4. One (1) manufacturer has submitted four (4) consecutive passing batches
for its onme (1) dosage strength and has been temporarily released from the
certification program.
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BATCHES REJECTED FOR CERTIFICATION

Five (5) batches from three (8) manufacturers have been. denied. certifica-
tion for failure to meet USP and/or F.R. requirements: P :

Senator NrLson. So there were 44 digoxin products in the marekt-
place by 44 different companies? R »

Dr. Crour. They were all making an identical product. They were
making 0.25 milligram tablets, and there were, as I reecall, 44 manu-
facturers. ' ‘

Senator Nersox. How many of those had brand names and how
many of those were generic? ]

Dr. Crour. Well, the most prominent brand name is Lanoxin made
by Burroughs-Wellcome. I am not aware of any other brand name
for digoxin. T think the other 43 were sold under the generic name
of digoxin. s : # ’

Senator NerLson. Do you have the names of the companies that
were manufacturing this drug? Lo L

. Dr. Crour. We can submit that. LS

Senator Nerson. Would you submit names of those companies for
the record? : o

Dr. Crour. Yes,sir.

Senator Nrrson, And there was only one that met the standards?

Dr. Crour. No, by no means. Well, beginning back in 1969,
the firms that had tablets out of compliance, from the stand-
point, remember, of content uniformity, they had mixing problems—
some tablets had more digoxin than was supposed to be in the tablets,
some had less—entered into a voluntary certification program.

Several firms dropped out of the business at that time, and we
ended up with something on the order of 30 to 85 firms making
digoxin between 1970 and now. The tablets entering the market
from 1969 through now have met the USP standards for content
uniformity. : : :

In 1970, T believe, 1970 or 1971, a new problem appeared with
digoxin. The discovery was made that certain of the tablets
lacked bioavailability; that is, that the blood levels in patients re-
ceiving those products were not up. to standard, ‘even though the
tablets themselves were meeting USP specifications at that time.

So between 1971 and late 1973 a number of things happened in the
research scene. The Food and Drug Administration, and the USP,
went to work to develop a dissolution rate test for digoxin. When
that became available in late 1973, we published our new regulations
and said all manufacturers must meet the new USP dissolution rate
specification. . - T

Senator Nrrson. Was there a direct correlation between the dis-
solution rate and the bioavailability? LT

Dr. Crour. If you will allow the word “direct” to be interpreted
a little broadly,gres; there is a pretty good correlation. *: -

We then tested almost all the products that were on the market in
late 1973 for the new dissolution rate standard. We tested about
30 manufacturers’ products. There may be. a few more, but we tested

30 manufacturers. Twenty of those passed, and the other ten were
recalled. S : ‘
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Now, everybody must do a couple of things at this point. They
must enter a certification program, and they must submit to us an
ANDA stating that they are going to do bioavailability testing within
180 days. We do not know yet how many manufacturers are going to

submit ANDA’s, but we would assume that it is on the order of at
Jleast 20.

Senator Nerson. What do they have to put into the abbreviated
NDA? ’ . ’

Dr. Crour. I beg your pardon?

Senator NeLson. What do they have to include in their abbreviated
NDA? '

Dr. Crour. They have to include evidence of bioavailability. They
have to include their specific procedures for making digoxin. They
have a plant inspection and so on, which is part of the usual procedure
of approving an ANDA. '

Senator NeLson. What about your batch testing? .

Dr. Crour. Batch testing will go on for as long as necessary, but
we assume that as the bioavailability data come in and as manu-
facturers demonstrate repeatedly that they can make a good batch,
they will drop out of this certification program. So we view
this certification program as a transient and not a permanent phe-
nomenon on the digoxin scene. ' ' : :

Senator Nerson. You stated you discovered the problem in 1969.

Dr. Crour, Yes. B ; i

Senator NeLson. The Defense Personnel Support Center state they
learned about the problem in 1965. They have no record of ever
having informed the FDA about that.

Do you have such a record ?

Dr. Crout. No, and I am not certain what the problem could have
been, because the problem discovered in 1969 required a methodology

by which you could analyze individual tablets. ) T

- That methodology was: not -available in 1965, so. whatever
problem you are referring to was not the problem that T am dis-
cussing. A :

Senator Nerson. Because the technique was not available?

Dr. Crout. The technique was not available in 1965, ,

.Senator Nerson. Since it is a very important drug and its availa-
bility may very well be critical to patients, should the Defense Sup-
ply Center not have notified the FDA of whatever problem it was
they said they discovered at that time? ’ :

- Dr. Crovur. I would have thought so. As you know, I was not at
the agency in 1965. I do not know what the communication channels
between the two agencies were at that time. IR

Senator: Nerson. Well, has any system now been established which
Wwould require any agency that discovered a problem with any.drug
to notify the Food and Drug Administration, which has the most
significant responsibility for assuring quality ¢

Dr. Croor. T think there are several systems established which the
Commissioner deals with in his testimony coming up.

Dr. Scamipr. I might say that when we heard of some criticism by

“the Agency, we took a look at the communications link, and T asked
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a team from the FDA to visit that Agency, which they did. And I
made sure that there will be effective communication henceforth, at
least out of our Agency. :

Senator NeLson. All right.

Go ahead, Doctor. ) .

Dr. Scammr. Well, if I might, I would like to just make one point
about digoxin. You have heard much about bioavailability problems,
and the digoxin story is such a nice example of an important drug in
which problems arose. The first problem turned out to be content;
the second problem turned out to be a dissolution problem. . :

We have instituted a program to handle the problem. In recent
months and years much has %een learned about bioavailability prob-
lems, even though it is a young field. And we can now say that these
problems are manageable, and I think that the digoxin story is a kind
of case history that demonstrates the bioavailability problems very
well.

Mz, Gorpon. Dr. Schmidt, I just want to go back to another prob-
lem that the Chairman was talking about just a few minutes ago,
that-is, about your contacts with the DOD.

The DOD stated in material given to us that there is a close work-
ing relationship between Defense Personnel Supply Center (DPSC)
and the personnel of the FDA. As far as I can see, there is no such
thing as of now, anyhow. :

Would that be correct?

Dr. Scamipr. Well, T do not believe we had a close working rela-
tionship in the last few years with the DPSC. At least it does not
meet my definition of close.

Senator Nerson. But you do now?

Dr. Scamipr. Well, very recently, we do, because I sent a team up
there. I was intrigued by Mr. Feinberg’s speeches, and it stimulated
me to get a closer relationship. : ‘

Senator Nerson. Please proceed.

Dr. Scemior. Thank you. :

In my prepared statement I use another example of this prob-
lem, the large volume parenteral problem which I mentioned, and
I would skip over that since we have talked about them.

Another program we have for monitoring drug quality is a
joint effort involving the various pharmaceutical associations, the
USP and FDA. Under this program, pharmacists across the Na-
tion report apparent product defects or problems to the USP. Copies
of these reports are furnished to the manufacturer or other distribu-
tor of the product in question and to the FDA. Based on the evalua-
tion of these reports, we issue investigatory assignments to the field
when indicated, or in some cases institute special programs or surveys.

During fiscal year 1973, we received 2,750 program reports. The
program, while still young, is expanding at a very rapid rate as
demonstrated by the fact that we have already received 2,350 re-
ports for the first half of this fiscal year. We find in looking
very recently that our reports now are coming in at the rate of about
1,000 a month, so that we believe this will be an extremely produc-
tive information gathering source. : :

I include an example on page 7 of the problem that came up with
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nitroglycerin. We learned about this through the program and were
able to take appropriate measures to solve the problem.

Now, in conjunction with the total quality assurance program, the
Agency conducts a number of programs which help assure a uni-
formerly high quality Nation’s drug supply, including establishment
and product inventory. ) ) :

All drug manufacturers must register annually with the FDA.
During the past 2 years, we have improved our data systems, and we
continuously review our official establishment inventory list of regis-
tered firms to verify its accuracy and to insure that all registered
firms are active. ‘

This was another point made in one of the GAO reports and we
agreed with their recommendation and are moving to comply with it.

The Drug Listing Act of 1972 authorizes us for the first time to
require information that will result in a comprehensive inventory
of all marketed pharmaceutical products. We are currently process-
ing submissions under this act and expect this file to be active within
a few months. This will provide an important resource for other
agencies as well as for us and will enable us to use in other areas
field manpower formerly needed for gathering information on drug
products. ‘ o ‘

Now, another important drug quality assurance mechanism is
the new drug approval process, the NDA process, and I believe
this is so well known to you that I will not detail it now.

Another important measure that, again, you have heard about
already this morning from the previous testifier, is our drug
efficacy study implementation that is going on now. The DESI
program rates the effectiveness of drugs and seeks evidence of their
safety and efficacy. : . ;

Under this program, some 5,600 ineffective drug products have
been removed from the market, ineffeéctive indications for use have
been deleted from drug labeling, and where drugs have been shown
to be only possibly or probably effective, manufacturers have been
provided an opportunity to supply the data that will establish their
effectiveness.

In addition; manufacturers of many products not previously cov-
ered by NDAs have been required to submit abbreviated NDAs.

Senator Nerson. My copy does not have your figure. You say
there are 6,000 ineffective drugs that have been removed.from the
market ? o

Dr. Scammr. To date, 5,600 is the figure T gave. This is, within
a few drugs, an accurate figure.

Senator Nerson. That is based on the National Academy of Sci-
ences-National Research Council studies? ,

Dr. Scammr. Yes, and our subsequent evaluation of their recom-

mendations and our grading of the drug. ,
. Senator NeLson. You mention almost 6,000 ineffective drugs. That
includes, I assume, those that were found to be “possibly effective”
by the NAS-NRC, and subsequently the company could not pro-
duce substantial evidence that they were, in fact, effective, so they
became classified “ineffective?” S i e

Is that correct? :
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Dr. Scumipr. If there are any in that category, it would be ex-
tremely small, and there may be none as yet at all.

Senator NeLson, What I am trying to get at is a definition. When
you say almost 6,000 ineffective drugs have been removed from the
marketplace, I take it that there are a number of drugs that were
classified “possibly effective,” and FDA has required in accordance
with the statute, that the manufacturers submit substantial evidence
of effectiveness. And if they cannot do so, that drug that was classi-
fied “possibly effective” then becomes classified “ineffective.”

Is that correct? ;
Dr. Scammr. Well, yes, sir. Generally where we are now in the
process is that the clearly ineffectives for which there were no data
supplied have generally been removed from the market. We are now
in the process of evaluating data submitted to us by firms for drugs

that have been classified as possibly or probably effective.

In most instances—and this point relates to an earlier thing you
heard about, and that is the delay in our implementing the study
and the court order that we are currently under—there are a num-
ber of mechanisms that come under the heading of due process that
caused delay in our taking action against drugs.

For example, we would propose to remove drugs from the market.
This proposal may be challenged, and, indeed, we will probably
have to run a great number of hearings and probably then be in
court a number of times before we can finish up this job.

Senator NErson. You mean the issue involved will be a difference
of opinion between the manufacturer and the FDA as to the ade-
quacy of the evidence to support the claim of efficacy?

Is that what you are saying? :

Dr. Scammr. Partly the argument should be scientific, and partly
they will be procedural. But in general we are going down a care-
fully constructed path that will include hearings before we remove
some of the drugs that are in these intermediate categories for
which conclusive data of efficacy has not been submitted.

Senator Nerson. Please proceed.

Dr. Scammr. I mntioned that many products not previously
covered by NDAs have been required to submit abbreviated NDAs,
and as Dr. Crout has just mentioned, before such applications are
approved, we require compliance with GMP regulations. As in the
case of NDA submissions, this is determined by.a very thorough
plant inspection. This program has greatly increased our inspection
activities in small and medium-size firms in the past and has re-
sulted in substantial improvement in compliance with the require-
ments of GMP regulations. o

The DESI program has also improved and promoted the exchange
of information between FDA and other health agencies regarding
drug efficacy status and does have an influence on purchasing poli-
cles of various Government agencies. The impact of the program is
rel:l;:irkably broad. You heard some of it earlier from the previous
testifier, P , :

The Secretary of DHEW has directed that Federal funds will
not be expended for the purchase of drugs classified under the DESI
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program as no greater than “possibly effective” for use in certain
of the Department’s programs, such as the direct care programs,
contract care programs, and Federal grant programs. )

With the Drug Enforcement Administration, which now includes
the former Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs, we have
established procedures for implementing the large-scale DESI re-
view follow-up action against amphetamine-containing drugs not in
compliance with current requirements. )

These drugs are under the jurisdiction of both the Drug En-
forcement Administration and the FDA. Although this cooperative
action has not as yet been completed, some 1,755 amphetamine-
containing drugs manufactured by 851 firms have been effectively
removed from the market. This regulatory action involved 549 drug
recalls and five seizure actions under the FDC Act. With co-
operating State health officials, a high ‘degree of success has been
achieved in the removal of these violative drugs from pharmacy
shelves throughout the country.

Liaison for exchange of DESI program information has been
established with the Chief Pharmacy Officer of the Public Health
Service. In addition, we have received numerous communications
from State, foreign government, and United Nations health officials
about drug status under the DESI review program. And we rou-
tinely forward copies of the DESI announcements to several Gov-
ernment agencies.

The Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act requires that samples
of each batch of antibiotics and insulin be tested and certified by
FDA before these products are released for sale. Batch certification
is also imposed for other products when it is needed to assure uni-
form quality. And as we have just previously discussed, digoxin has
been subjected to batch certification since our drug surveillance
program revealed significant variances from official standards.

. The FDA regulations set standards for the facilities and condi-
tions under which drugs are manufactured. Because good manufac-
turing practices should be “current” and change as drug technology
changes, these regulations are periodically updated. The regulations
were last revised in 1970 and are currently under further revision.
Among changes being actively considered is a requirement that all
drug products bear an expiration date based on adequate stability
data, and also addition of GMP regulations for specific classes of
products such as large volume parenterals.

- Now, to return to the  bioavailability or the bioequivalency prob-
lem, it has been shown in recent years that in a few instances
chemically equivalent drugs, even ‘though they meet all official
standards, produce significantly different blood level§ in man, and
this is referred to as either bioavailability or, the drugs lack bio-
equivalency. : ' v :
~ To assure the bioequivalency of chemically equivalent drugs, we
are taking three steps. First, we will shortly publish in final form
regulations describing standards and procedures to be followed in
conducting bioavailability studies. : g
_Second, _we will shortly publish proposed - regulations requiring
bioavailability studies for all drugs of certain kinds; for example,
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those for which the precise dosage is particularly critical and where
a bioavailability problem would create a health hazard—and digoxin
was certainly an example of that kind of drug; and also_ those
formulations with previously documented bioavailability problems.

And last, we will also publish in the near future a notice con-
cerning the procedures we will follow in calling for and reviewing
~ data about the potential for bioavailability problems with other
drugs; that is, those without previously well-documented bioavail-
ability problems. ' SO - .

Mr. Chairman, in my opinion, the issue of bicequivalency is cur-
rently being overdrawn. As we have learned more about nonequiva-
lency problems, it has become clearer that they are limited in num-
ber and are manageable. And, agéin, I think the digoxin story is -
a classic example of the problem.

If I may speak for a moment to our relationship with other Gov-
ernment agencies. Many Government agencies are involved in the
procurement of drugs. An organization called the Intra-Govern-
mental Professional Advisory Council on Drugs and Devices was
established to provide these agencies with a forum for the timely
interchange of medical-technical information, and, ‘through coop-
erative efforts, to improve the quality of drugs furnished to the
agencies. Types of information exchanged include specifications,
standards, and those involving quality control and inspection. The

FDA is a charter member of this council. :
~_ Working groups have been established within the council for in-
depth exploration of appropriate subjects and areas. These groups
meet every 4 to 6 months, which provides an opportunity for in-
formal contact and exchange of information of mutual interest.

The FDA supplies the DPSC with copies of FDA daily -action
-reports identifying all seizures, prosecutions, injunctions, and recalls
involving drugs. gince September of 1973, we have also been supply-
ing DPSC with unevaluated copies of all notices of observations,
the form sup’i:lied to all drug firms by our inspectors at the end of
inspections. These documents represent the individual inspector’s
raw and unreviewed observations, o

Representatives of the Bureau of Drugs maintain frequent con- -
tact with the various Federal purchasing agencies and continually
respond to inquiries, both written and- by telephone, from DPSC,
Defense Medical Material Board, Veterans Administration, GSA,
and’ Public Health Service Stock Pile Management, ‘concerning
firms and produects. These inquiries generally involve such matters
as the adequacy of labeling, “new drug” status of drugs, FDA
Inspectional and laboratory results, and tests, procedures orother
data in New Drug Applications that have been submitted to us. ;

In addition, when a drug is to be recalled from the market and
we determine from distribution reports that the firm has supplied
the drug to DPSC, VA, or other Government -agency, we notify
that agency of the recall. Tt is then the responsibility of that agency
to insure appropriate recall of the drug under its control; :
' When we receive a report through our Drug Defect Reporting -
System, the DPSC is notified whenever the report originated from
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& Federal hospital or other Federal installation, and also where a
Federal stock number is part of the labeling of that product.

Again, as you heard earlier, wé have completed actions to imple-
ment the recommendations of the March 1978 GAO report on En-
forcement of Good Manufacturing Practices for Drugs. We have
developed a monitoring system to identify, first, new drug firms
that require inspection; second, existing drug firms that fail to re-
register for a current year; and three, .ﬁrm"‘s tbat require inspection
to fulfill a statutory requirement for biennial inspection, as we dis-
cussed a few minutes ago. * o ) L

In addition, FDA has revised the Administrative Guideline for
GMP’s to -provide more specific guidance to FDA personnel in
determining the need for regulatory action subsequent to a GMP
type of inspection. Now, that guideline is under current considera-
tion for further revision. P

The more recent GAO report in December of last year on Improv-
ing the Federal Procurement of Drugs recommended that the sepa-
rate quality assuranee activities of the DOD, the Veterans Admin-
istration, and the FDA, should be consolidated into a single organi-
zation. We believe this to be a sound recommendation that will
enhance the efficiency of the Federal quality assurance efforts.

‘Senator Nersox. Is that recommendation being implemented ¢

Dr. Scammr. Yes, sir. We have begun, we have proceeded perhaps
_a little further with the Veteraris Administration, in part I think
- because it is a smaller operation. We have a general agreement with
the. Veterans Administration to have us ‘provide for them drug
quality assurance. Indeed, with ‘the VA we have been doing drug
- analyses for them for a long time. :

With the Department of Defense, we have ‘been talking with offi-
cers of the Department, and I believe have secured general agree-
ment that the FDA can and will provide quality assurance. We do
not have specific details worked out as yet. However, I will put
it in the category of a general agreement to agree. L

Senator Nerson. It is your expectation that the responsibility
for quality assurance for the DOD will be dssumed by the FDA ¢

Dr. Scammwr. We bélieve this is a proper thing to do. We be-
lieve we can do it, and ‘we believe that the DOD' agrees, »

There -are  probably two principal areas that T will wish to see
adequately spelled out before T will be happy with any arrangement
we might come up with. The first area regards purchasing. T think
that we should and can and will see to the quality assurance, but T
want to be assured that we do not get involved in the actual pur-
chasing of the drugs and the setting of purchasing specifications,
which I think is kind of another question. - o

The second area is one that you have already touched on, and
that has to do with the special requirements that Mr. Feinberg
mentioned in his speeches. T am cautious in this area 'because I
feel, first of all, T do not know enough about the special require-
-ments to speak compreliensively and wisely to them. In geneéral, we
feel that the quality of drugs and the safety of drugs is the same
thing for the military. as it is for the civilian population. And if
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indeed there are requirements over and above our present compendia
or other requirements for drugs that are laid down by the DOD,
and these are legitimate, then we should make the requirements for
drugs that are issued generally to the population. e

Senator Nerson. Well, do you have any indication that the DOD
has any standards or requirements that exceed the compendial re-
quirements ¢ ! : '

Dr. Scammwr. I just have a series of questions about whether or
not the requirements really reflect on the quality of the drug or
not, or reflect on some more or less arbitrary requirements that are
laid out by the DOD for some special purpose of their own.

Now, there may well be, I suppose, some packaging requirements
for shipment of drugs to Timbuktu or wherever, that really do not
have to do with the quality of drugs. But in general I do not see the
need for two standards of drugs, one for the military population and
one for thecivilian. : ‘ ,

In short, we feel that the FDA is the most logical focal point for
the quality assurance responsibility of the Federal Government, and
I mentioned we have been talking to the VA and the DOD re-
cently about consolidating these efforts, and we requested from the
Department of Defense and the Veterans Administration informa-
tion as to precisely what resources they now expend for drug quality
assurance. We expect that within 30 days of receipt of such data,
as well as data involving any particular quality requirements they
may have, we can prepare and circulate a program in both agencies
that will give them the assurances that they can legitimately re-
quire that we can in a timely fashion meet their needs. ;

At the present time, we direct essentially all of our human drug
budget, which is approximately $438 million to $44 million to assur-
ing that the drugs in the marketplace are safe and effective. During
the last 2 years we have analyzed thousands of drug samples in both
certification and surveillance programs and have inspected. 97 per-
cent or 100 percent of those manufacturers of human prescription
grugs who are responsible for about 95 percent of the marketed

rugs. T L i

We believe that the impact of our quality assurance programs on
the drug industry has made that industry one of the most quality
control conscious industries in the country. This has resulted in a
drug supply for this Nation that we believe to be of the highest
quality in the world. ‘ ‘

We plan to take any necessary measure to strengthen further our
quality assurance program in the months ahead. We know we will
find problems in the future. Indeed, this is to be expected. When
they are found, however, we will correct them, and thereby take
-one more, step toward the goal of a consistently and uniformly high
quality drug supply. i
. Mr. Chairman, we will be very happy to respond to any questions
- that you or the staff members may have. ' :

Senator Nerson. Thank you, Dr. Schmidt.

As you knoyv, for quite some time a representative of the DPSC,
Mr. Max Feinberg, has made public statements which, if true,
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would tend to cast doubt on the quality and vigor of FDA’s quality
assurance program. The Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association
has widely quoted Mr. Feinberg’s statements and relied heavily on
them in opposing Secretary Weinberger’s proposals for drug re-
imbursement costs. : L

Mr. Feinberg has testified before State legislative bodies in oppo-
sition to the repeal of the antisubstitution Iaws. This subcommittee
has asked the DOD for material to support Mr. Feinberg’s charges.
This material will be placed into the record of these hearings at the
appropriate place. A copy of this material was also given to the
FDA and others for comment and analysis.! :

In addition, members of the office of compliance of the Bureau
of Drugs visited the DPSC in Philadelphia to ascertain precisely
what kind of data could have been the basis of Mr. Feinberg’s many
speeches and articles, e . - ;

We would like to have you discuss this matter and these data in
detail. For example, Mr. Feinberg stated that: “We develop defini-
tive product specifications which often exceed official or commercial
standards.” Y ' '

On the basis of the material submitted to you, would you please
tell us the significance of these so-called extra requirements and the
kind of drugs to which they are applied. Have any complaints about
drugs or their manufacturing plants been submitted to the FDA
by the Defense Department in the past 5 years? : ‘

Have they ever resulted in FDA action? In other words, has
DPSC ever given you information sufficient to bring about an action
on your part?

Given the information you have about DOD from the data they
submitted to us and your examination of data in Philadelphia, how
would you compare DOD’s quality assurance program in size as well
as quality with the FDA’s? How significant really are DOD’s ac-

tivities in this field ? S : o
- Would you mind commenting on that? :

Dr. Scummr. Mr. Chairman, I might make first just some gen-
eral comments, and then if there are areas that you wish to explore
In a more detailed fashion we can double back on it.

I myself became aware of these particular speeches by reading
them, and it may be that my scientific background helped me in
evaluating them as I read them. But I was not particularly alarmed
or upset by the speeches myself, because they were general. There
were no specific figures or times or any solid evidence contained in
the speeches. ; o

Mr. Goroon. Excuse me, Dr. Schmidt. There were some specific
figures with respect to rejection of drugs and manufacturing plants.

Dr. Scamir. Well, again, T guess I began by saying that perhaps.
my having read scientific literature for 20 years or more kind of
helped me with this, because if I see a figure that says 43 percent, -

ang %t does not say 43 percent of what, I generally skip to the next
article. :

1 See page 9978.
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Three, as you know, is 60 percent of 5. And 300 is 60 percent of
500. And there is a difference of several hundred there. And in gen-
eral this does explain why I was not alarmed by what I read. I
was somewhat alarmed, however, that the PMA and others began
quoting from and basing testimony on what I considered to be quite
insubstantial grounds. And I think that any critical reader of the
speech or anyone knowledgeable in the area would realize that you
really cannot say too much definitive on the basis of this.

For example, it is stated that we do not ‘inspect 100 percent of
drug firms every 2 years. And of course we do not. We cannot. There
is no way we can.

Senator Nrrson. But you do 100 percent in 2145 years?

Dr. Scamivr. Well, we do do that. We do 100 percent of inspec-
tions of those firms that manufacture 95 percent, at least of pre-
scription drugs. We do many more inspections of those drug firms
in which we know there are problems. So that the main question I
have in regard to what Mr. Feinberg says is, what relationship does
all that he says bear to the quality of drugs. :

You mentioned early on his making the point of their standards
exceeding compendial standards. Well, fine. My question is, what
relationship do the standards they set, exceeding compendial
standards Eave to do with the quality of the drug. And from what
I have seen of their standards, they either do not relate to the
quality of the drug at all or they may relate to packaging or some
legitimate need of the military. »

I did send a team to visit the establishment and Mr. Feinberg
was generally cordial and helpful to our team in reviewing what
he does and how he does it. And I think perhaps, was a little em-
barrassed after he had information provided to us that there were
inaccuracies in his speech. He still .did not change the speech. He
apparently had some secretarial problems. that prevented the speech
from being retyped. : ,

The inspections, the big point about GMP’, I.think; failed
to find evidence to support his charges, and he has failed to provide
us with evidence that support the charges in his speech that his
inspections demonstrate our failure to maintain quality. The number
of analyses of drugs done there is very small, and the principal
analyses are done, not on production runs of drugs, but on special
runs of drugs done by a new company wishing to make the drug,
in many instances a company that has never made it before." And
his 45-percent rejection rate is of a relative handful of drugs on a
nonproduction run by companies, some of which have never made
it before and have never sold drugs to DOD before.

Mr. Goroon. Dr. Schmidt, may T interrupt for a moment?

Here is the kind of statement the public has been hearing—I am
going to quote from his speech: ¢
. The rejection rate on DOD plant inspeétions is 45 percent, and the rejec-
tion rate on precontract award samples.inspections is 42 percent.

It does not say percentage of what or anything. Now, when a
lay reader sees this, he is going to be alarmed, do you not think,
when he sees this?
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Dr. Scammr. Well, an uneritical reader may very well be misled
by those statements.

Mr. Goroon. Here is another statement :

Based on my experience of drug plants, it is my firm conviction that the
vrimary problem lies in the fact that many producers in the business today

are in -gross violation of FDA’s good manufacturing practices ‘regulations.
'Thoge same firms are manufacturing drugs-on a daily basis. -

Here is another quote:

We ‘have seen totally unacceptable housekeeping conditions involving -dirt,
fifth and rodents. We have reviewed production records that showed noncom.
pliance with the company’s own standards. We have found instances where
ingredients in finished products are not adequately tested.

If a person reads or hears this, I would think he would be alarmed.
I certainly would.

We asked the DOD for evidence to support these statements. We
submitted the information to you.

And what do you have to say about it?

Dr. Scamipr. Well, many, many of the inspections that they have
done, I think principally the inspections that he is quoting from
‘there, were not done when the company was in full production. I
really do not know on what basis the author of those statements is
convinced. He would have to speak for himself in those matters.

I think it is true, I could go into the kitchen of the home of every
individual in this room and shut it down for being unsanitary, I
made a specialty of that when I was in the service, and I think -
that as the GAO found out I could probably go into drug firms
today and find some violation of GMP in some plant at some time.

If we find major and serious GMP violations we take corrective
actions immediately on these. -

Part of his statement, and I think part of what he was able to
put together with other things to convince him, was the statement
in the GAQ report that in some instances we have not taken action
when a “critical” GMP violation was discovered. We had a problem
with the GAO and the definition of the word “critical.” We supplied
the GAO with proper definition of the word “critical” which did not
mean in that report what it sounded like, that we were ignoring
eritically important GMP violations.

It is true that we make informed judgments and wise judgments,
hopefully, from time to time not to shut down a plant for any GMP
violation. We: could readily shut down every pharmaceutical plant
in the United States if we went in, as T would in your kitchen if
I wanted to find dirt. So that, you know, there is an element of
truth in some of these statements. But again, the relationship of
these statements to the quality of drugs is inapparent to me, and
many of the statements are unsupported totally by any evidence,
either in the paper or by any evidence that he has provided to us.

I mention the sampling; the program includes, as you know, drug
sampling and inspections, and the numbers of these both are small,
and when these are done raises a question, because some of the
Inspections are not done when the plant is in operation, and therefore
would have no meaning to the quality of the drug produced.
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As far as the statements he makes about bioavailability, we spoke
of one or two or those already, and I will just say that he has really
provided us with no specific special evidence of bioavailability
problems that he has that we do not have. The drugs that he men-
tions as having bioavailability problems generally everybody knows
and has known about the problems, and indeed, we have moved to
correct the majority of those problems. ) )

Mr. GorooN. Concerning the “definitive product specifications”
he talks about, he says they often exceed official or commercial
standards.

Now, on the basis of the material submitted to you, would you
tell us the significance of these so-called extra requirements? -

He makes a big deal out of this. _

Dr. Scamir. Well again, I would just divide them into two cate-
gories. There may be some that are required by the Department of
Defense that do not relate to drug quality, but rather relate to
shipping problems or maintenance problems in an extremely hot,
humid atmosphere or some such. We would need to look at those
carefully, and I think work out with their purchasing people the
kinds of specs that are legitimately required by the DOD which do
exceed compendial standards. :

There is another group as I look at them, and I will ask Dr.
Crout or Mr. Loftus to comment on this in a moment, that do not
seem to us to relate to drug quality at all.

Do you have a comment?

Dr. Crour. Yes. If we have to base an answer to your question
on what was submitted to us through you, then it is quite clear that
most of the violations of GMP’s as we see them are relatively trivial
and unrelated to the quality of the drug. It is quite clear that these
specifications relate to the needs of a purchaser, rather than to a
general assurance of quality. I think we are hesitant only in that,
as Commissioner Schmidt mentioned before, our communications
with DPSC have not been strong through the years. We are in
many respects still in contact with them on the issue of what is it
exactly they do. : ‘

I do not mean to quote back to you something that you already
know about. But I think we can all read down here and read de-
scriptions of violations. You know, washroom was not clean; no
receptacle for used towels; a loose, slightly soiled roll of towels was
available for drying hands; paint had flaked from the ceiling on
many locations; dust and refuse was found on the floor in work
areas,

Again, these are true. But an in-depth GMP inspection is quite a
different thing. One is really interested in the recordkeeping of a
firm; evidence of repeated weighings, of two people weighing some-
thing carefully and checking each other; evidence of analytical pro-
cedures at various steps along the way; evidence that the tempera-
ture during a cooking procedure was indeed maintained for the
right number of minutes at the right temperature. Those are the
kinds of information you get out of a GMP inspection.

Now, there is not anything like that in anything here. This is a
superficial look in and glance kind of an operation. We are not say-
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ing that the DPSC does not do a good GMP inspection. But if you
ask the question on the basis of this piece of paper that you have
supplied to us, the answer is “no” in our view. .

Mr. Goroon. Well, that is what they supplied to us in response
to our request. .

Now, Mr. Loftus was in Philadelphia. Perhaps he might tell us
what they are doing there and the significance of what they are
doing.

M% Lorrus. Yes, sir. Mr. Chairman, when I got these answers I
sent wires out to six of our field district offices and I said, the
Department of Defense has furnished us this information. DPSC
has furnished us this information. They furnished it to the Nelson
subcommittee, and we sent it out to you. What did you do about it ?
What did you think of it in your judgment ?

These people are professionals. They have been in Food and
Drug a long time. They are management people. They have been
in a lot of drug firms. And I have wires back from four of those
districts, and I have telephone reports from the other two. I believe
there are 25 of these reports here, and I think I have 18 or 19 re-
ports back. Some of them we never got. One involved a foreign firm
that we did not inspect. _

But what comes out of it is that in one instance the district said
In response to a recent inspection that was reported to us by DPSC,
yes, Mr. Feinberg was right. We have documented what he said and
we are going to do something about it. You will get a regulatory rec-
ommendation of some sort. I got that telephone report.

In the main, they said, we either made an inspection as a result
of the report or we had already made an inspection or we evaluated
it, and in our opinion it was either not a GMP problem at all, or
if it was, it was a minor GMP problem.

What T am saying to you is that representatives of six different
field districts of the Food and Drug Administration—I am talking
about management people who have been in the Food and Drug
Administration a long time—arrived at value judgments that in
the main—not in every case, but in the main—these are relatively
minor things.

Now, I do not want to put this, or take this thing out of per-
spective. Nothing, nothing is completely minor. What we aim for,
Mr. Feinberg aims for, is absolute perfection. Absolute perfection
does not exist in a drug firm. Tt does not exist in this room. It does
not exist in my home or yours. But we aim for it. We do not mini-
mize and we do not belittle what Mr. Feinberg has reported to us.
We are glad to get it.

As a matter of fact, when we make an inspection, at the end of
that inspection our inspectors do precisely what Mr. Feinberg’s in-
spectors do. They write down on a piece of paper a last of every-
thing they find wrong in their opinion with the firm, including, if
1t 1s so, an unscreened window that has been locked for years. They
will report that, too, for the edification and the knowledge. of the
management, a goodwill gesture. We do this. We are not required
by law to do it. We do it as a simple gesture of goodwill toward
the industry, here is what our inspector found. Look to it.
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: N

But when it comes to whether or not the law has been violated
and the law says that drugs must be manufactured under current
good manufacturing practice, and the courts have held that this
current good manufacturing practice is articulated in the regula-
tions under part 133 in the Code of Federal Regulations, title 21,
what we call GMP regulations.

If there is—I hate to use these adjectives, because they get us in
trouble—but if there is a significant deviation from GMP, if a
reasonable man who knows something about drug ‘manufaeturing
would be led to believe or would believe that something is going
on in that firm might cause that drug to become adulterated, FDA
h‘asdan obligation, a duty to act and act now. Our position is that
we do. : ‘

The allegation of Mr. Feinberg’s speeches—and it is throughout
many of his speeches, throughout the years—that many drug firms
in the United States operate under gross violation of FDA’s GMP’s
is his own private, personal opinion. He believes this. I have had
ﬁgnverslations with him that convinced me he believes this deep in

is soul. o

I do not agree with him, nor do our people in our Washington
headquarters or in the field. v ‘

There is a situation which DPSC follows—I have no quarrel
with it—the military sets its own rules. We do not interfere with
them—in which for some reason a firm that wants to bid and is -
not on a bidders list must pass a pre-award survey inspection. The
preaward survey inspection requires absolute perfection. I do not
understand this, but I do not quarrel with it. )

For some reason, again that I do not understand, once a firm
has a contract to manufacture drugs, the rules change and the abso-
lute perfection parameters disappear. Proof of this is the fact that
samples that they analyze—what do they call them, first production
—or samples that they analyze of drugs when a—-first article sam-
ples—when a production just starts under contract are 20 percent
defective. These are their own figures.

I do not know how they could be 20 percent defective while they
are under inspection by the Department of Defense—they call it
DCAS inspector—if they have absolute perfection. It does not
make sense. . ‘

Again, I do not want to, and the Commissiorier has tried very
hard not to deprecate the requirements of as much perfection as
you can possibly get. This is what we are working for. We are not
trying to pooh-pooh good housekeeping. We want good housekeep-
ing in drug firms. ~ 4

Senator Nerson. But if I understand your testimony and that of
the Commissioner: One, that you have considered their criticisms -
on good manufacturing practices in the main to be insubstantial;
two, that if there was any violations of good manufacturing prac-
tices that affected the quality of the driig, you would consider that
a major, important matter, and if they did not affect the quality of

the drug, you may require them to correct it, but that you do not
- eonsider it a substantial matter. Co
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Is that a roughly correct statement? . o

Mr. Lorrus. I would only qualify it, sir, to say that might, in our
judgment, affect the quality of the drug. If it is established that the
quality of a drug is affected, there is no question but that we would
take action. )

Dr. Crour. May I add one other point that I think we are mak-
ing. And that is we think that based upon the man effort that goes
into an inspection, the DPSC, like everybody else must rely on the
FDA inspector for the indepth inspection of plants for GMP’s.

Senator NEerson. Because they do not have the personnel to do so?

Dr. Crour. And simply do not put the time into it, based upon—
they have one inspector in a plant for a couple of days. You cannot
figure out whether an enormous operation is making drugs by
GMP’s with one man in a couple of days. It just takes more work
than that in a big plant. «

Senator Nerson. What is the dimension of this inspection made
by FDA? T realize it varies, but one man in 2 days could not inspect
a major operation. If it is a major operation, what do you generally
consider a necessary commitment of time and personnel to make an
adequate inspection ¢
"~ Dr. Crour. This has varied from time to time depending on the
inspectional program; but let Mr. Loftus speak to that, and I think
maybe the IDIP program would be a good model.

Mr. Lorrus. Yes. It would vary, sir, depending on the size of the
firm and the type of the operation. Are they making tablets, are
they making a particular type of tablet. For instance, the problem,
the GMP problem, the manufacturing quality control problems with
regard to meprobamate manufacture or aspirin manufacture would
be considerably different from the manufacturing problem involving
digoxin or prednisone or something like that, where the ratio of
‘active ingredient to inactive ingredient in the one case is extremely
high and in the other case is extremely low. T ‘

You would have tablets in both cases, but one inspection you
might do in a couple of days, another inspection might take a week.

You get into a manufacturer of parenterals. Whether you are
talking about large volume parenterals or small volume parenterals,
these are the type of inspections you do not make in a couple of days.

Dr. Crout alluded to what we call the IDIP program. We had a
few years ago a program, as we call it, the indepth inspectional
program of the entire prescription drug manufacturing industry. T
say entire, but T do not deal in absolutes. I think there were a few
that we ‘missed, but we got most of them. And some of those in-
spections lasted as much as 6 months, and we did not leave those
firms until—any of those firms—until our district people were
satisfied insofar as human beings can be satisfied that those firms
were actually producing prescription drugs under proper GMP
conditions,

T have years ago been an inspector myself, and it was nothing to
spend a week or 2 weeks in a parenteral plant, to spend several
days or a week in a tablet plant, depending on the size. You cer-
tainly would not spend 2 weeks or a week in a little mom and ‘pop
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drugstore that works up some sort of a little salve for the local
business. :

I am told, or we are told by Mr. Feinberg and his colleagues, we
were told this when we visited them in January, that DECAS has
some 20 full-time drug inspectors. I checked that in one of his
speeches that he made in 1972, and he used the figure 20. More
recently, in my dealings with Colonel Huyck and others of the
Pentagon, I have been told that figure is a little higher.

But they have some 20 full-time drug inspectors, 5, 6, or 7 of
whom, depending ‘on day-to-day problems, I suppose, are what they
call resident inspectors. For instance, Lilly might have a resident
inspector full-time in the plant. I do not know if that is so. But
Lilly might have a resident DECAS inspector full time,

But in the main, their drug inspectors spend very little time on—
it is pretty obvious that they spend very little time in drug plants,
because you cannot stretch 20 inspectors very far. o

Senator NerLson. How many does FDA have?

- Mr. Lorrus. FDA has—do you know, Dr. Crout? I

Dr. Crour. T might comment on the scope of our programs, yes.
There is in the Bureau of Drugs headquarters for fiscal year 1974
an assigned 1,026 people. In the field the drug programs involve
839 people. ‘

Senator NrLsoN. 839 who are inspectors ¢

Dr. Crovur. Inspectors and analysts.

Senator NeLsox. And analysts? o

Dr. Crour. And analysts and chemists. Now, inspectors will be
about a third of-it, I suspect.

Mr. Lorrus. About half.

..Dr. Crout. About half. o

Senator Nerson. About 400 plus? o

Dr. Crour. And we would consider of all of these people that
roughly, T would say, one half of the whole Bureau’s programs are
in the quality assurance area, another 40 percent perhaps are in the
drug review area; and there is some spinoff, as you recognize, and
some linkage between the drug application review and quality con-
trol areas. So really, 80 to 90 percent of everything we do is in one
of those two areas. And—— N ’

. Senator Nerson. You mean the whole ‘Agency?

Dr. Crour. The whole Bureau of Drugs. P
~ Senator Nerson. Oh, the whole Bureau of Drugs.

Dr. Crour. And the other things—— ’

Senator Nerson. With over 1,000 people in the Bureau?

Dr. Crour. The other:things involve medical communication, or
adverse reactions reporting. They are small, and they pick up about
10 to 20 percent of our resources. '

So we are talking about a total operation of 1,800 people; some-
thing like 40 to 50 percent of that entire effort is in the quality
assurance area. ‘ ‘ - L t

. Now, the DPSC, as we understand it, is something on the order
of 20 to 80 people. We are talking about a difference of 50 fold or
something between us. That is why I say there is no question that
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simply on a resource basis the primary inspectional mechanism of
the Federal Government that monitors the drug supply in this
country is in the Food and Drug Administration. ) )

Mr. Goroon. How about laboratory facilities—that is, testing of
samples and so forth—how would you compare DPSC? DPSC claims
it does not have any M.D.’s. Now, the FDA has M.D.’s, pharmacolo- -
gists, pharmacists (many at the doctorate level), toxicologists, chem-
1sts, biochemists, all kinds of specialists—does it not? ,

Dr. Crour. Correct. i

Mr. Goroon. Now, compare that with what DPSC has.

Dr. Crour. Well, I think you have enumerated what we feel to
be our resources. I cannot compare that because T personally do not
know exactly what the personnel of DPSC are.

Mzr. Loftus, do you? o :

Mr. Lorrus. The DPSC—neither DECAS nor DPSC has any
pharmacologists, toxicologists, medical people, these kind of thing.

Mr. Goroon. Or M.D.’s? - , ‘

Mr. Lorrus. Or M.D.’s. The DMMB, Defense Medical Materiel
Board I believe is what they call it—this is composed of the Sur-
geons General of the three services—have advised DPSC to rely
on FDA for bioavailability information and support. We are told
this by Mr. Feinberg.

I believe you have also been told this by the Department of
Defense in answers that they submitted to you.

That laboratory—DPSC 'has a nice little laboratory in Philadel-
phia, It is a good lab, .and they have got good professionals there
but they have from 8 to 9 analysts, one of whom is a microbiologist
working on human drugs. TR : g

Now, I do not know how much of their time is spent on drugs,
but let us say all their time is spent on drugs. They also work on
medical devices and other medical things.

Mr. Feinberg told us when we were there in January that that
laboratory—MTr. Feinberg and/or his staff told us in his presence
that that laboratory analyzed from 600 to 700 samples of drugs in
fiscal 1978. Of that 600 to 700, more than 600 involved preaward
sample analyses and first article sample analyses. R

So what this tells us is that that laboratory analyzed somewhere
~between 0 and 100 finished product samples in fiscal 1973. We do

know from information that your committee - obtained from the
Department of Defense that there were something more than 400
samples analyzed in fiscal 1973 on contract by other persons other
than their own lab.

But it all comes down to a rather miniscule effort. Again, it
represents a difference in philosophy between the approach that
flle takes to quality assurance, and the approach that the military
akes. , -

I am not faulting it or criticizing it in any way. But the ap-
proach is that when they are satisfied that a particular drug firm
can make drugs -well, then everything is fine. If they have an in-
spector in the plant fulltime, which is the case with very few or
part-time—and I do not know what that part-time comes down to—
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once that inspector is satisfied that the output of that firm is fine,
that is it; they accept the drug.

I have no quarrel with that either, because we, too, have to rely
on the drug firm. But it would seem, and it is FDA’s position, that
a good quality assurance program operated by Government has to
take into account post-manufacture analysis of finished product.
Tt just has to be.

Mr. Feinberg said in one of his speeches that the inspector has the
right and the duty to utilize the drug firms’ laboratory facilities to
make whatever laboratory analyses he thinks are indicated.

I said I have difficulty with this, because I know in my own
experience that when I was a drug inspector I would have been
thrown out of the plant if I tried to use somebody’s laboratory
facilities to do analyses. He agreed, and he said no, they do not do
assays. They do not do content uniformity. They do not do steriliza-
tion. But they watch the professional in the firm who does.

We asked them what happens if a piece of equipment is out of
calibration. Obviously, the results are going to be wrong. What
check have you here? And he says, we will be wrong, too.

Okay. I was satisfied with that, but it does not help.
hSe;lator NeLson. But your inspectors check the calibration, do
they ?

I\%r. Lorrus. Well, they may or they may not, but they certainly
do check the finished product. ,

Senator NerLsox. Well, do they have the qualification to check the
calibration of the material? '

Dr. Scamipr. Mr. Chairman, I think the point here is we do not
rely on their laboratories at all; and that is not whethér the issue
is in or outside of calibration. What we do is take the drug, take
it to our own laboratories where we know the calibrations are accu-
rate, and do the analysis of the finished product.

The point is that he is relying on their labs but we do not. We
rely on our own laboratories. ‘

Mr. Lorrus. The qualifications of analysts vary. The way to
check that is to check the output of those analysts. .

Dr. Croutr. Again, if you are interested in a comparative size
figure, I can supply or will supply a more precise one. But we run
on the order of 10,000 drug analyses in a year. o

Senator Nerson. Is this against the 8007 :

Dr. Crour. One hundred, as T understand. This is on marketed
products. '

Senator Nevrson. They do about 100, and you do about how many?
- Dr.-Crovur. Ten thousand. ~

Senator Nerson. And these are done in your own labs?

Dr. Crour. Yes. : '

Mr. Gornon. Do I understand correctly that they do not do any
testing of finished products? = '

Dr. Crour. Again, I think we have to keep in mind that our
objectives are somewhat different. We run a monitoring system
designed to assure to the extent possible that drug manufacturers
are making a quality drug product. They are running a system
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designed to see that the drugs the military buys meet whatever
standards they choose to set up. ) .

Now, one of the things they do is say to a manufacturer if you
want us to buy your drug, submit us a sample of what you can
make. And the manufacturer may never have made it before. He
may not be marketing that drug. And those are the ones they ap- .
parently, as far as we can tell, put most of their laboratory invest-
ment into testing. And therefore, they are dealing with a different
population of drugs than we are dealing with. That is why they get
defect rates orders of magnitude different than we see. Their testing
is done for a different purpose. ‘ .

Senator NErson. I take it from your comment, Dr. Schmidt, on
page 14 then, that you agree with Dr. Edwards’ statement made on
February 1st before the Health Subcommittee: “Nevertheless, based
upon present knowledge, I believe that with very few exceptions any
drug prescribed in this country will give the same therapeutic re-
sults as any other chemically equivalent product. . . . we regard
this issue as limited, well recognized, and manageable.”

Do you agree with that?

Dr. Scamipr. Yes, sir. I do. , v

Senator Nerson. Then you stated on February st yourself, you
estimated that there may be “10, 12 or 14 drugs” which may have
bioavailability problems.

Is that correct ? :

Dr. Scamipr. Yes, sir.

Senator NErson. Can you give us the number of drugs which in
the (?)pinion of the FDA present bioavailability problems at this
time

Do you have them along? If not, can you submit their names? -

Dr. Scammr. Yes, sir. My comments ‘were based on a comprehen-
sive analysis of list of drugs that have been mentioned in articles,
drugs that are in our own files, and so on, that are purported to
have bioavailability problems. :

I need to take a moment to define carefully this list, because the
proper assessment of the bioavailability problem includes answering
the questions about precisely what drug one is talking about.

We ask the question in how many cases have two or more drugs
which contain the same active ingredient, the same chemical, which
would include the same salt which is in the same dosage form, that is,
in pills as opposed to one pill and one capsule, in the same amount—
that is, the same amount of the ingredient—in which dosage form
meets all official compendium standards. .

Now, I'think it is only fair to say that there are bioavailabilit
problems with a drug when one can say. that he is dealing witK
two things that are the same salt, in the same amount, and the
same dosage form, both of which meet compendium standards.

When we analyze then the drugs that there have been shown bio-
equivalency problems with that meet those requirements, we come
up with a list of 12 or 13, which include—would you like me to
read the list? :

Senator Nrrson. Sure.
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Dr. Scumior. Acetazolamide, acetylsalicyclic acid in two forms.
This list is 13 drugs, and 2 of them are acetylsalicyclic acid in 2
different forms. ) )

Ampicillin, chloramphenicol, both of which, of course are anti-
biotics; digoxin, which we have mentioned; diphenylhydantoin pedi-
atric suspension form; nitrofurantoin; oxytetracycline, which is an-
other antibiotic~—these, of course, are batch-tested; phenylbutazone.

Senator NeLson. Not tetracycline itself, but oxytetracycline?

Dr. Scamipr. I am sorry. Would you say that again?

Senator NerLsonN. You mentioned oxytetracycline. You did not
include the parent drug, tetracycline.

Dr. Scamint. The antibiotics we are batch testing, as you know.
Senator Nerson. You mean this one teracycline— o
Dr. Crour. No. Tetracycline is also on the list. We are coming to
it. S
Dr. Scamipr. I mentioned oxytetracycline, then phenylbutazone;
riboflavin sugar coated tablets; then tetracycline hydrochloride,
which is a plain tetrachloride; and then finally, trisulfapyrimidine,
another pediatric suspension. ‘

Now, I would again hasten to add that digoxin and the anti-
biotics and so on are batch tested, so that while there have been
substantiated bioequivolency problems, we feel these problems are
being managed. :

W%len I said in my testimony that I felt that the bioequivalency
area is being overdrawn, what I mean by this is that a lot of en-
thusiastic people are in the field hunting up names of drugs that
have been suggested that might have bioavailability problems or
whatever. —

I think that one must be precise, and logical, and scientific in his
thinking about such problems. And I have been unsuccessful in
finding any large mysterious problem area that people hint at in their
testimony about drugs. ,

Mr. Goroon. Well this has become a WPA project for many
people. It puts them to work to try to dig up these drugs.

Excuse me, Commissioner. Did you say that these drugs that are
on the market—say tetracycline—may present a bioavailability
problem. Those that are on the market, however, are bioequivalent,
are they not? ' :

Dr. Scamipr. Well, this list is a list of drugs which we feel meet
our requirements for having had a genuine bioequivalency problem.
This is not a list of current problems. ‘

Mr. Gorpon. Oh, not a list of current problems.

Senator Nerson. Is it feasible for chemists, pharmacologists,
scientists, to make an educated guess in advance, about what kind
of a compound and what kind of a form might likely present the
bioavailability problem ¢ :

Dr. Scamir. Yes. And I think very importantly we have in our
regulations—and again, I mentioned that we will deal with this
problem—dealt with this issue—perhaps I could ask Dr. Crout
Veg briefly to—— v

r. Crour. Yes. I think the answer is yes. And there is increasing
data in that area. It is a little easier, I think, to specify the kinds
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of drugs which are perhaps unlikely to have a bioavailability prob-
lem than it is those which are likely to. And in general, the water-
soluble compounds and those which go into solution readily in the
stomach, do not have bioavailability problems. )

I would like to, as a general principle, state something that I
think has caused a lot of confusion. There are two issues that I
think are being mixed up at the moment by a number of people;
and they should not be mixed up for us to properly consider public

olicy.

P On); issue is are there lots of examples of a drug in different dos-
age forms, in different crystal sizes, and so on, and different salts,
which produce different blood levels? The answer to that is yes.
There is an enormously expanding literature to the effect that the
same active molecule, if you compound it differently and put it
in the form of a different salt, if you put it with different binders
in a tablet and so on, that you may get different blood levels. Now,
that is being done purposefully by people in biopharmaceutics who
are experts, for the purpose of identifying the principles of how
to compound a good tablet.

Now, you cannot mix that literature up with another problem. The
other problem is: If there are already well-known standards for
the manufacture of a drug, and if two manufacturers are trying to
make the identical thing, absolutely identical—same salt, same
dosage size, same tablet, everything—how often—excuse me—and
the products they make meets all the compendium standards, how
many examples are there then that unsuspectingly those two prod-
ucts were different? :

Now, that is the issue in public policy. And that is the short list
which the Commissioner just gave you.

Now, I think there are some—they include both the Pharmaceuti-
cal Manufacturers Association and the Academy of Pharmaceutical
Sciences—who are tending to mix up those two issues and tending
to take the large literature, demonstrating a lot of differences be-
tween drugs when they are in slightly different dosage forms, and
say that is relevant to the second issue, which is two manufacturers
trying hard to make a drug, and they both meet identical standards.
And those should not be mixed up.

I want to make it very clear, because otherwise the list we gave
you is subject to attack. But we do not think it is subject to attack
if the attackers will stick by the ground rules we just gave you—
namely, identical product, identical salt, made by—all meeting com-
pendium standards, and the difference between them: is unsuspected.

Senator NEersown. Is there not a further question, and that con-
cerns a drug that achieves a different blood level at a different rate,
but that this difference has no therapeutic significance.

. Dr. Crour. Yes. That is possible; indeed, it happens all of the
time. And that is a matter then of judgment on whether these two
different forms are identical. But that is a judgment of man that
applies to all issues, if you will, and indeed, to all drug issues besides
bioavailability.

We have to make those kinds of judgments, for instance, on
clinical data or on efficacy also.
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Senator Nerson. Well, you had the case of chloramphenicol. . -

Dr. Crout. Correct. . = = - N S

Senator Nerson [continuing]. In which the brand name product
Chloromycetin achieved a higher peak level much more quickly
than all of the others, with the blood level dropping off much more
quickly. When you look at the charts, one of the other products
looked like a bell curve while the other one went up quickly—with a
high peak and went down precipitously. '

Dr. Crour. Yes. .

Senator Nrrson. Now, at the time the FDA required the other
companies to comply with the blood level achieved by the Chloro-
mycetin; and there has been no evidence, and I have heard of none
since, that the Chloromycetin was more effective therapeutically
than the others. But since it had been in the marketplace for many
years; physicians had dealt with it; and it was an effective drug
for the purpose for which it was indicated, therefore you required
the others to achieve the same blood level.

If it had been the other way around, that the Chloromycetin had
a bell curve level and the others achieved a higher level and went
down, I assume you would make the same decision, make them meet
that same blood level—not based upon the evidence that one was
more efficacious than the other, but based upon the fact that you
knew one was effective and had been in the marketplace.

Is that correct?

Dr. Crout. Correct. _

Mr. Gorpon. Concerning the extra requirements that the DPSC
has for some of the drugs which you examined, would it be fair to
say that some of the requirements there, which may not have med-
ical significance, tend to undermine competition? For example, the
use of certain expensive equipment, which may not have any med-
ical significance, would at the same time exclude many small com-
panies from supplying drugs to:the DPSC? Lo

Dr. ScerminT. In looking over-the requirements I would think that
some of them would have the effect of limiting those that could meet
the standards, yes. ‘

Mr. Gorbon. Even though they may not have medical significance ?

Dr. Scamimr. Yes. : '

Senator NerLson. Thank you very much, gentlemen, for your very
valuable testimony. )

Dr. Scammr. TlZank you, sir.

(Whereupon, the hearing in the above-titled matter was recessed at . -

1 t()l% p.m.,) to be reconvened the following day, Thursday, Feb. 21, 1974,
at 10a.m. ’ e : ‘

- [Testimony resumes at page 10163. The information referred to by
Seng_tor Nelson follows:] :
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MATERIAL SUPPLIED BY THE NELSON SUBCOMMITTEE TO THE FDA

AND OTHERS FOR COMMENT AND ANALYSIS

ALAN BIBLE, NEV,, CHAIRMAN

JOHN "MKMAN. AI.A
YLORD NELSON, Wi
ml ucnmm:. N.H

SAM NUNN, GA.
J. SENNETT JOHNSTON, JR.,

JAMES
FLOYD K, HASKELL, COLO:

JACOR K, JAVITS, N.Y.

'y " N
LA, SAMI BUCKLEY, . .
S ey, i il oo Vlnited Slates Denate

DICK GLARK, 1oWA SELECT COMMITTEE ON SMALL BUSINESS
CHESTER H, SMITH, (CREATED PURSUANT TO 8. RES, 59, $tST CONGRISS)
STAPF DIRECTOR AND' GENENAL COUNSEL WASHINGTON, D.C, 20510 -

Janvary 17, 1974

The Honorable James R. Schlesinger
Secretary of Defense
Department of Defense

‘The Pentagon

‘hlhinqm. D. C.

- Dear Mr. s;ct.tlﬂ!

The Monopoly Subccmmittee of the Senate
Small Business Committee has been studying various
aspects of drug procurement by agencies of the
FPederal Government., In connection with our study
we would be very grateful if you would send us
the mfmtl.on nqu“tod eu the atuehod sheets,

The smmem mld approehto receiving
thc r«quutod inforuttm by January 30, 1974.

v If there are any questions, please contact
Benjamin Gordon at the office of tho Senate Small
Business Comitm 225-8489.

Sincerely yours,

GAYI&RD lIBLSCll
.- Chairman’ '
. Subcommittes on Monopoly

Attachments
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DEPARTMENT OF DEFPENSE

1. mwhntmmtotmtrmmraoddomdoa
'prc-mrd survey” just pr!.w to a specific award?

2. What percent of pu-mrd omcy- are done by pPsC?
By DBA?

3. On vhat perceat of contram mrdod doycu 40
laboratory analyses of pre-award -nplu?

were
4. How many man-years/devoted in FY 1969, 1971 and 1973
to the inspection of drugs by DPSC? By DSA? : '

S, What percentage of man-years of Lnspoctmn tuu was '
devoted in the same years to:

pPre~award surveys? :

In-process inspection? '
- Acceptance of product hupucum? .
Othex?

In-store :({Depot) surveillance?

6. Por FY 1969, 197) and 1973 ‘how MERY WaAN-yYears of
laborstory work went into swt of the hupcctica
process?

m.cuo mdqdm m total hhmratuy
m-yan i.ntos R

nm ltbonwy
Contract laboratories
Other (specify)

7. Por Fiscal Yeaxr 1973 p).oau c!.n the mn‘bor ot
people ing .
DSA ~= overhead aul.qxwl to nrsc
Medical Material . .. - o
DCAS = Medical Material sumt for dﬂgs
Other meadical ﬁm

32-814 (Pt 24) O-T74-5
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DPEC ww

Medical Directorate
Supply Operations
Technical Operations
Overhead _

Procurement Directorate
MNedical Division

Othar

G. m riscal 1973 give total -nw-r of ladboratory
personnel

Chemists
Pharmacists
Support (Specify)
Overhead ‘

Other

9. Please give total DOD annual budget involved in inspection
of drugs for riscal 1969, 71, 73.

10, Who evalumntes the clinical oumtvmu datn you re~
quire from some suppliers?

11, How many M.D.'s are there on the DPSC staff?
Of these, how many are mmuu? v
Same information for DSA staff,
DO you contract for these types of services? (ho
determine clinical effectiveness)?

1f yes, please nm the ‘contractor and drw. -tudhd
for years 1969. 1971. 1973.

12. Please list all t-ehatul da.vuten personnel who have
a scientific degree of natm or PhD?

2=
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13. “Por the 150 top 4rugs - by dollar volm-bwght
by DODs

. Which ﬂurucwtm muu supplied the in~
formation which was Lumnm into each
lpwulatim?

muehu!thonw gtvo thn umof phlr- .
saceutical conpanies who have been successful
bidders on DPSC contracts for each product eince
original specificsation was first written. Please

. give stock numbers, and established nnd trade -
names of each product, ; ‘

14, Nusbder of mmmhmrowm%wtym?
L Nasber. of rm«atauvn hs W tlut tn-
. Spect drng fac!.u.tm ,

18, 1n the wot sevaral mﬂu l(r. !'-mbcro of thc mvsc
has publicized certain problems for which the Subcommittee
is very anxious to secure additional information. His
statement and our questions are as foum: ‘

(a) "The r-jweun rate on DOD plaue mmw
is 45 mmt and the rejection rate on pcmtnct
;mrd Mu inspections is 42 pormt. -

wmm you puu- qulai.n uactxy m th.n
ﬂmmu wcrc dori.ud? :

. (b) "Buud on -y mum oz am plauti. Lt 1-

‘my firs conviction that the primary problem lies in
the fact that many producers in the business today
are in gross violation of YDA's good wanufscturing
practices regulations. Those same ﬂnu{m ANy
facturtng drugs ea a Mny balu. ; -

Will you please mpplya u) ttu names of m firms;
. (2) the dates of the "gross violations® of FDA's =
* good manufacturing wmi«n rmlnt!.onu (3) woro

"-3-
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these were reported to the FDA and othexr govern-
went purchasing agencies, and if so, wvhen and in
what detaily (4) the exact description of the
violation (not a general u:ntmnt ke poau: ,
housekeeping,” ste), :

{c) "we have seen totally meewublo house-
keeping conditions involving dirt, f£ilth, and
rodents.  We have reviewed production records
that showed noncompliance with the companies®
ovm standards. We have found instances where -
ingredients and finished woducu :rc pot v
adecquately tested.”

As:in the previous guestion, plesse supply
the names of the companies involvedidates on =
which violations were found; were th u-:m'
to the FDA and other government agencies, and

if -#0, vhen and how; and t.ho axact dcm!;ption
o! the violation.

(d) wteh tcopoct t.o problm a! digm:ua tedlets -
«= “This was no surpriss to the drug specialists
in DPSC Decause we know of many other exatiples. -~ -
demonstrating that compliance with laboratory -
standards is not mmruy indicative of o
exmum -ftoctivmu.

Wwhen dl.d thc nm dm tpoemutn tirlt lesrn
about the problew v:lth -an d:lqoxin tabhtl on
: tht -ukbt? v

zmmmmwumumzuwm
;:mmtmmmn.mmm _

‘Which of your drug specialists first be-
- _came acquainted with m Nlﬂ?
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-Please name the “many other examples" mentioned,
Was the YDA informed? When and how? Give name
and title o!wnmmm.maucm ‘
thnc prohlan?

(n) "We develop definitive product specifi-
cations wvhich often exceed official or commer~
cm standaxds,*

Please name each product for which such speci-
tfications have been developed; the sigaificance

for each product of these extyra requirementss

and the medical purposs served by these extrs require-
mentss

16. Please state deviations from FDA's good mamufacturing
practices regulations which the DOD considers: significant,
and which are not considered significant by the PDA?
rluu identify where there is a differsnce of opinioa.

mamcumma.mmmmzmm
obsexvations are significant?

What criteria does DPEC use?

‘ . | : :
Does DPSC relate the violation to a particular
product? In other wards, does the violation,

for example, contribute to the eoututut,ton
of the product?

B
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"RECEZIVEDJANT T Lo}
' ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE
'WASHINGTON, D. C. 20301

HEALTH AND i 89 JAN 574
ENVIRONMENT

Honorable Gaylord Nelson
Chairman R
Subcommittee on Monopoly. .~ " .
Select Cotinmittee .on Smaik Businéss
United States Senate =
"Washington, D. C. 20510 .

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This is in response to your lettér of 17 January- 1974 in which you iféquested
certain information pertaining to the procurement. of pharmaceuticals within
the Department of Defense. : i

Selected manpower and cost data pertaining to prior years was not readily
available. Additionally, our accounting system does 1ot provide for a -
separate breakout of inspection manpower staffing and costs by éommodity.
The appropriate activities within the department are engaged in obtaining
the desired data and it will be furnished to you in the near futire.

You will note that enclosure 1 does not: contain a'response to‘the question
regarding clinical effectiveness data. The following response is provided:

""The Military Medical Services rely upon the evaluations of
clinical effectiveness data as accomplished by the Food and
Drug Administration pursuant to applicable Federal Regulations
(i.e., New Drug Applications, etc.)., There are, however,
some exceptions such as drugs developed primarily for military
uses, i.e. antidotes for chemical warfare agents, certain anti-
malarials, etc. Additionally, on an infrequent basis, the
Services have been asked to evaluate studies presented by the
‘Defense Personnel Support Center (for example, bio-availability/
clinical effectiveness studies on a few drugs). In the case of
these exceptions, the bio-availability/clinical efféctiveness data
related thereto has usually been evaluated by the appropriate
expertise among the professional staffs of all three Surgeons
Generalls Offices. :
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It is hoped that the information provided will be of assistance in the
conduct of your study. If there are any additional questions reégarding

this matter please contact Lt. Colonel Theodore D. Wood in my office
(Tel. 695-4938). :

Sincerely,
e }@k Moo
George 4. es

* Major General, MC USA:
Principal Deputy

Enclosure (1)
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. QUESTIONNAIRE

B

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SENATOR NELSON FROM DEPARTMENT OF .DEFENSE

1. QUESTION:

.On what percent of contracts auarded do 'you do a "pre-award survey"
just prior to a specific award?

ANSWER:

A pre-award survey is an ‘evaluation by a contract administration
office of a prospective contractor's capability to perform under the terms
of .a proposed contract. Such evaluation shall be used by the contracting
officer in determining the.prospective contractor's responsibility. The
evaluation may be accomplished by use of (a) data on hand, (b) data from
another Government agency or commercial source, (c) an on-site inspection
of plant and facilities to be used for performance on the proposed con-
tract or (d) any combination of the above. Pre-award surveys shall be
conducted in accordance with Appendix K, Pre-Award Survey Procedures. A
pre-award survey shall be required when the information available to the
purchasing office is not sufficient to enable the contracting officer to
make a determination regarding the responsibility of a prospective
contractor.

Dcfencs Pox

ipncl Support Center (DPSC) obtains Defense Contract
. Administration Services on-gite facility surveys on approximately

107% of the contracts awarded.

N

2. QUESTION:
What percent of pre-award surveys are done by DPSC? By DSA?
ANSWER: »

100% are performed by DCAS. DPSC may elect to participate and does
send technical personnel as part of the pre-award survey team.

In FY 73 DCAS conducted 206 pre-award surveys. Of these, DPSC
participated in 100. DCAS man-hour expenditure was about 9,000 (about
5,000 in quality and about 4,000 in production). Of this total,
approximately 5,000 man-hours were expended by DCAS for drug pre-award
surveys (about 3,000 quality assurance and about 2,000 nonquality
assurance).. The remaining man-hours were expended for other Medical

" Materiel. .

Enclosure I
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information Required by Senator Nelcon
from Department of Defense

3.  QUESTION:

On what percent of contracts awérded do you do laboratory analyses
of pre-award samples?

ANSWER:

For Medical Materiel, pre-award samples:are-evaluated on approxi-
mately 9% of the contracts awarded. For/drugs the rate is'closer to 5%.
Laboratory analysis of pre-award samples Ts perrormed in order to
supplement the currently available information and/or pre-award survey
and assist the Contracting Officer in determining if a prospective
contractor is responsible. The need for samples is predicated upon the
available quality history of the prospective contractor'and/or the
item being procured. ’

4, QUESTION:

How many man-years were devoted in FY 1973 to the inspectisn of
drugs by DPSG? By DSA? o e ..

~  ANSWER:

DPSC - Approximately 6 man-years of the technical personnel assigned
to the Quality Assurance Branch, DPSC were devoted to the inspection of

DSA - DCAS personnel devoted to the inspection of drugs not readily
available, and will be provided in second increment,

5. QUESTION:

VWhat pércentage of man-years of inspection time was devoted in the
same years to:

Pre-award surveys?
.~ In-process inspection?
Acceptance of product inspection?
Othex?
In-store (Depot) surveillance?

I
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‘ fnformation Required by Senator Nelson
' from Department of Defense

1

o %

5. ANSWER: * .
Domestic Pre-Award Survéys )

- Preparation, on- site DPSC Participation and Report

Preparation . 167%
- Requesting, Evaluation, and Report Preparation !
where DPSC did not participate - 27%
Foreign Surveys . ' 17%
In-Process Inspection. ' ' : .-
Acceptance of Product Inspection . oo 3%
Other . ’
Quality Audit ) : 17%
Pre-Award Samples - 5%
Misc (Supervision, Review of Protocol Special
Inspection Requests, Contract Review, étc.) 11%
In-Store (Depot) Surveillance .
(Quality System Management Visits only) 4%
1007,

% Percentages apply to DPSC man-years ofvinspection
time only. DCAS percentages not readily available,
and will be provided in second' increment.

6. QUESTION:

For FY 1973 how many man-years of laboratory work went into support
of the inspection process? Please break down the total laboratory man-
. years into: : .

DPSC laboratory
Contract laboratories
Other (specify)

ANSWER:
Laboratory work in support of the inspection process for Fiscal

Year 1973 covering Pre-Award Samples, Contractual Samples, Pre-Acceptance
Samples and samples submitted by the QAR for verification is as follows:
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. :‘nformation, Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

6. ANSWER: (Cont'd) g
 DPSC Laboratory: g 9 Man-Years
‘ ‘ Samples - 7 gost

Contract Laboratories *8 ;$' 845.00

Other Liboratories: - %213 ‘ . $4’,‘819‘55
Walter Reed Rt ' $3,101.00
U.S, Army Medical . "
Research Lab., Ft. Rnox *69 : $1,718.55

* Man-year data not available.

7.7 QUESTION:

Fotr Fiscal Yedr 1973 please give the number of people in:

DSA -- overhead assigned to DPSC Medical Material
DCAS -~ Medical Material Support for drugs & other
medical material
DPSC -- Medical Directorite
Supply Operations
. Technical Operations T e
Laboratory - [T
Overhead , :
.. Procurement Directorate.
Medical Division '
‘Drugs
Other

ANSWER:

Fiscal Year 1973 manning was as follows:

DSA - overhead assigned to DPSC Medical Mate el Q

DCAS - Medical Materiel ‘Support for drugs £

Materigl‘i - nOt ‘readily a'vsl(ilable,,,

vided in second “{nerement.,
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3
'

. information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

7. ANSWER: (Cont'd) ' ? ‘
DPSC ’ . : TOTAL . DRUG - - OTHER
' Medical Directorate ws2 835 3985
Supply Operations - 1‘15 ) 12 : 103
Technical Operations 168 l32.5 135.5
Laboratory Branch @2) (9.5) (12.5)
Provisioﬁing Branch » 9) ‘ - (9)~
" Procurement: _ 163 35 128
! Overhead . 36 W T
* Includés 22 n':ili.taty_‘personnel. .
Ql;SC Overhead ., ) 130 (Includes 3 military)

8. QUESTION:
PFor Fiscal 1973 give total manpoéer of laboratory personnel
Chemists - ;
Pharmacists
Support (Specify)
Overhead
Other
ANSWER;

Total manpower for. the Medical Materiel Laboratory for Fiscal Year
1973 is as follows: .

Chemists 7
‘Phatmacists’ 1
vHiifi'obiologisEs o 1
e Eiginests 6
E;‘Sineetins' Technicians © - 4

Clerical Support’ ‘ 3

Laboratory ’ T 2
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Information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

9.  QUESTION:

Please glve total DoD annual budget :involved in. inspectton of drugs
for Fiscal 1973,

ANSWER:

Data not readily available, and will be provided in second increment,

10. -QUESTION:

Who evaluates the clinical effectiveness data you require from
some suppliers?
- e

ANSWER:

Not applicable - Will be answered by the Defense Medical Materie1\

Board.

11. ~QUESTION:
How many M,D,'s are there on the DPSC staff?

0f these, how many are pharmacologists?

Same information for DSA staff,

Do you contract for these types of services? (to determine clinical
effectiveness)?

If yes, please name the contractor and drugs studied for years 1969,
1971, 1973.

ANSWER'

The .DPSC Medical Materiel Dirgqtorate and the HQ DSA ataff do not
have an M,D. or a Pharmacologist assigned. These types gf servigces
are not contracted for by DSA. :

12. QUESTION:

Please list a11 technicai division personnel who have a scientific .
degree of Master or, PhD’ A .
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" ‘information Required by Senator Nelson
* from Department of Defense

12. 'ANSWER: t .

The following Technical Division personnel have a scientific degree
of Master:

5

LtCol Jordon D. Johnson, Jr., USAF, BSC

LtCdr Paul B. Donnelly, MSC, USN . MS
Lt R. D Tackitt, MSC, USN , NS
LtCol Douglas J. Silverpale, MSC, USA Ms
Mr. Leon Jozwiak ‘ MS
Mr. William MacGowee MS
Mr. Sidney Genn MS
Mr. Paul Licht Ms
Mr. Robert Simon MS
"Mr. Glenn Kent MS

©MS

Mr. Irving Meisel

"13. QUESTION:
For the 150 top drugs -- by dollar volume -- bought by DoD:

Which pharmaceutial companies supplies the informacion which
was incorporated into each specification2

For each of these drugs, give the names. of pharmaceutical
companies who have been successful bidders on DPSC contracts
for ‘each product since original specification was first
written.” Please give stock numbers, and established and
trade names of each product.

ANSWER: 150 TOP DRUGS

The "Remarks" column of the attached sheets has been annotated to
show the names of other bidders who bid on the indicated item but have
not received an award. 'In addition, the ''Remarks' column includes
information as to whether a New Drug approval, Antibiotic Certification
(Form 6), or Bureau of Biologics (BoB) License is required by a firm as

a prerequisite to marketing the item. 9

.
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' “Information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

o

13. ANSWER: (Cont'd)

The "Sources of Industry Information" column lists companies that
furnished data. The industry information is always reviewed to determine
its applicability and suitability. :In addition, specification:specialists
develop significant product data with the assistance of quality assurance
personnel, the Medical Laboratory, plant inspectors, and from literature.

___l_ékclos'e working relationship exists between DPSC and the personnel
of the FDA, United States Pharmac

harmacopeia,.and the National Formulayy.
Further, every drug specification, purchase degcription and modification
is forwarded to FDA, USP, NF, VA, and U,S, Public Health Service.
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Information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

L9

14, QUESTION:

Number of drug contracts in Europe for the past year?
Number of DOD representatives in Europe that inspect drug facilities.

ANSWER:

-

During the past year DPSC did not have any contracts in Europe.

Surveys of overseas drug firms are conducted by a DPSC Liaison
Officer.

15. QUESTION:

" In the past several months Mr. Feinberg of the DPSC has publicized
certain problems for which the Subcommittee is very anxious to secure
additional information. His statement and our questions are as follows:

(a) "The rejection rate of DOD plant inspections is 45 percent
and the rejection rate on pre- contract award sample 1nspections
is 42 percent."

Would you please explain exactly how these figures were
derived?

(b) "Based on my experience of drug plants, it is my firm conviction
that the primary problem lies in the fact that many producers in the
business today are in gross violation of FDA's good manufacturing
practices regulations. Those same firms are manufacturing drugs on

a daily basis."

Will you please supply: (1) the names of the firms; (2) the dates
of the '"gross violations' of FDA's good manufacturing practices
regulations; (3) were these reported to the FDA and-other govern-~
ment purchasing agencies, and if so, when and in what detail; (4)
the exact description of the vxolatlon (not a general statement
like "poor housekeeping," etc).

(c) "We have seen totally unacceptable housekeeping conditions
involving dirt, filth, and rodents. We have reviewed production
records that showed noncompliance with the companies' own standards.
We have found instances where ingredients and finished products are
not adequately tested."

As in the previous question, please supply the names of the companies
involved; dates on which violations were found; were these reported

to the FDA and other government agencies, and if so, when and how; and
the exact description of the violation.
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» *Information Required by Senator Nelson -,
from Department of Defense :

o

15. QUESTION: (Cont'd)

(d) With respect to problems of digoxin tablets oo

-= "This was no surprise to the drug specialists in DPSC because
we know of many other examples demonstrating that compliance with
laboratory standards is not necessarily indicative of clinical
effectiveness." : e

when,did the DPSC drug specialists first learn about the ptoblem
with some digoxin tablets on'the market? i "

Was the FDA informed of this problem by your organization and if
so, when and how?

Which of your drug specialists'first became acquainted with the
problem?

Please name the "many other examples” mentioned. Was the FDA
informed? When and how? Give name and title of drug specialists
who discovered these problems?

(e) "We develop definitive product specifications which often
exceed official of commercial standards."

Please name each product for which such specifications have been
developed; the significance for each product of these extra require-
ments; and the medical purpose served by these extra requirements.

ANSWER:

(a) The 45 percent rejection rate in plant inspections refers to
our FY 1973 responses to the contracting officer regarding award or no
award recommendations resulting from pre-award surveys of manufacturers
of drugs and devices, There were 216 such responses where an award/no -
awvard recommendation was made as a result of a pre-award suxrvey. Of
those, 97 or 44.9% recommended no award. . :

The 42 percent rejection rate on pre-award samples refers to our
FY 1973 responses to the contracting officer regarding award or no award
recommendations resulting from the evaluation of pre-award samples from ,
manufacturers of drugs and devices. There were 320 where an award/no
award recommendation was made as a result of evaluation of a pre-award
sample. Of those, 136 or 42.5% recommended no award, :

10
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Information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

-
]

15. ANSWER: (Cont'd)

(b) and (c) Upon completion of a plant inspection, an exit inter-
view is generally conducted with the company representatives at which
time the findings are discussed.__A summary of those findings is. then
forwarded to the company as a matter o 3 opies of the findings

led to r, RAVRon miTton, Division of Case Guidance),
stgfans' Administration, and U, 5, PublI¢ Health Service.

The Sttached complilation depicts examples and daﬁés of quality
control and housekeeping deficiencies requésted in 15 (b) and (c).

11
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"Information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

15. ANSWER: (Cont'd)
(d) RE: Digoxin Tablets
Learned of problem - 1965.

Information to FDA ~ No record. This was before the Intra-
Governmental Professional Advisory Council on Drugs and ‘Devices (IPADD)
was fully operational,. !

Drug Specialist - Cannot determine who became acquainted with
problem first. The subject arose as a result of field complaints.

RE: Other examples

The other examples refer to information obtained through
published literature, and complaint _xeports received by DPSC.

Such publications as The Bio-availability of Drug Products by

the American Pharmaceutical Association and the Pharmacokinetics discuss
equivalence and inequivalence of drug products.

Such drug products as Diphenylhydantoin Sodium Capsules,
Nitrofurantoin Tablets, Prednisone Tablets, Nitroglycerin Tablets,
Cortisone Tablets, and Thyroid Tablets were the subject of field com~
plaints dealing with effectiveness, All field complaints are routinely
forwarded to FDA as agreed tupon via IPADD. ~The dates of complaint
submittals are shown as follows:

ITEM INEFFECTIVE » FDA ADVISED

Diphenylhydantoin Sodium Capsules 4 December 1963
: 12 December 1963
15 April 1964
27 January 1966
2 May 1966

Nitrofurantoin Tablets 22 May 1961
16 June 1961
5 March 1962
11 April 1962

25 November 1969 (2 reports)

23 December 1969
2 January 1970
17 Pebruary 1970
. 15 May 1970 -
. 12 July 1971

12

.
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Information Required by Senator Nelson
from Department of Defense

f Ea

15. 'ANSWER: (Cont'd)

ITEM INEFFECTIVE FDA ADVISED
‘Predisone Tablets - 16 March 1970

12 December 1970
12 July 1971

Nitroglycerin Tablets 12 July 1971
Cortisone Acetate Tablets ) 12 July 1971
16 November 1973
m;roid Tablets ' 16 February 1961
© 14 March 1961
6. July 1961

8. September 1961
16 October- 1961

The drug specialists who first became acquainted with the

problems are those who saw the field complaints first. Our records do
not identify the personnel in that manner.- :

13
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. Information Required by Senator: Nelson
from Department of Defense:

16. QUESTION: .

(a) .Please state deviations from FDA's good manufacturing practices
regulations which the DOD considers significant and whlch are not
considered significant by the FDA?

Please identify where there is a difference of opinion.

(b) Who in DPSC makes the determination whether the raw observatjons
are significant? .

(c) Wwhat criteria does DPSC use?

(d) DoeS»DPSC relate the violation to a particular produc??
In other words, does the violation, for example, contribute .to
the contamination of the product?

ANSWER:

(a) The FDA Papers of April 1967 in an article "Good Manufacturing
Practice" states the Food and Drug Administration is convinced that most,
if not all, of the problems of drug quality can be solved by compliance
with the minimum requirements of the Current Good Manufacturing Practice

. regulations. The article also states, "Analysis of the fiscal year 1966
recalls shows that 351, or 78 percent, were for reasons which would be
related to a failure to observe GMP regulations.'” The FDA Handbook of
Total Drug Quality of July 1971 states in an article: Case Studies of
Drug Recalls, "We found that 75-80 percent of the errors contributing
to drug recalls were due to deficiencies and failures to meet the require-
ments of the Current Good Manufacturing Practice regulations." The FDA
Compilation of Cage Studies of Drug Recalls of March 1973, lists case
after case with the applicable GMR sectlons which relates to the apparent
cause(s) of the recall

. "All the GMP's are considered significant in order tp manufacture
-quality drug products. The problem is that the FDA GMP's provide only
general guidelines. This is recognized by FDA as in the Federal Register
of January 15, 1971, it was stated, "In the Federal Register of August 22,
1969 (34 F, F. 13553) a notice was published proposing a. revision of
Section 133 1 - 133,14 to clarify, strengthen, and make more specific

the good manufacturing practice regulations for drugs "

The DPSC Standards for the Mapufacture and Packaging of Drugs,
Pharmaceuticals and Biologicals were published in 1968, It was necessary
- to get these practices down in more detail and with a higher degree of
specificity. This is absolu;ely necessary to accomplish the mission of
DPSC -~ to deal with our suppliers and potential suppliers in a contractual,
not 3 regulatory capacity. A prime obligation of this relationship is
that DPSC must deal with all on an equal basis and before this equality
can be established it is essential that ‘all suppliers and pntential

Y
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informat:ion Required by Senator Nelso

from Department of Defense . ) B
~

16. ANSWER: (Cont'd) 3

suppliers fully understand the requirements that must be met. - The DPSC"
Drug Standards with their definitiveness are very essentinl fqr' the
continued support of quality procurement. It has been aanunced that

the following proposed revisions in GMP's will be made in 1974

a. Add a section on Sanitation.

b, Personnel responsible for Quality Control shall not also
be responsible for production. :

c. " Rni;uirément that all production and ‘control procedures be
reduced to writing. ’ E : . L

d.  Provision for the establishment of definitive records ,o’f k
all tests and assays. : : o E

e. A written record shall reflect which pieces of 'g"quipment
within each operation are or were in ope:ét'ion at any point in time.

f. Establish a requirement for the formal training ;of éniployees.
g. Each‘con.tainet_sampled shall be suitably identified.

h. Require reserve samples of inactive 1ngfedignts shall be
. ,retained.’ ' o . o ) ! g

i. Qualj.ficatiqns of consultants.

b

(b). A brief explanation of the scope and effectiveness of the pre-
award survey is as follows: .

The Armed Services Procurement Regulation (ASPR) requires that
the contracting. officer shall make & determination of responsibility or
non-responsibility of the prospective contractor. -If the information
available to ‘the purchasing office is not sufficient to enable the
contracting officer to -make a determination regarding a prospective ;
c:rfxtrgctor, a pre-award survey is conducted by the Contract Administration
‘ Office.

15
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’ Information Required by Senator Nelson

from Department of Defense
, S

16. ANSWER: (Cont'd)

A Pre-Award Survey required in-depth knowledge of various technical
areas in order to derive the necessary professional judgments regarding
the bidder's capability to perform in accordance with the terms and
conditions of proposed contract. The Pre-Award Survey involves expertise
in such areas as finance, development and production operations, production
engineering, specialized engineering, quality control, accounting,
industrial management, industrial property management and disposal, com-
modity specialist and purchasing activity representatives. In addition,

- assistance frequently may be required from legal, small business and -

industrial labor relations specialist. Consideration is given to.
utilization of available DCAS experts and likewise to those technicians
and specialists available from purchasing activities. . Each team member

- contributes his specialized knowledge and professional judgment under

o

and with the overall guidarce of the téam coordinator and Pre-Award
Survey Monitor. The monitor, in turn, is responsible for submitting

the integrated results of the survey to the chairman of the Pre-Award
Survey Board for approval and transmittal to the purchasing office. The
survey report and recommendations are then forwarded to. DPSC where the
report is reviewed and evaluated by personnel in the Quality Assurance
Branch. A summary of technical findings, which required approval by the
Chief of the Branch, is prepared together with-a recommendation to-the
contracting officer. g :

(c) DPSC utilizes the DPSC Drug Standards; Federal Standards on
Tablets, Capsules and Parenteral Preparations; Military Inspection.

‘System Specification, and any other specific specifications contained
“in the procurement solicitations. :

(d) Inspection is done in the plant for the procurement item.to
determine compliance of plant and product to requirements. Violations

may contribute to the. contamination of the product.
o

16
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CONTENTS

Answers to Senator Nelson's questions pertaining to.DCAS - “TAB A

Additional inforxmation related to Senator Nelson's questions TAB B
pertaining to DCAS .

Answers to Senator Nelson's questions pertaining to DPSC TAB C

ENCLOSURE 1
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TAB A
QUESTIONNATRE

2., QUESTION:

What percent of pre-award surveys are done by DPSC?- By DSA?

ANSWER: (Revision to answer contained in first increment)

All pre-award surveys arg done by Defense Contract Administration
Services. Defense Persopnel Support Center may elect to participate,

In Fiscal Year 1973 Defense Coptract Administrat
397 pre-award surveys op medical material. Of ¢

ion Sexvices conducted
hese 235 were op drugs.

Defense Persoppel Support Center participated in a total pf 136 pre=

ayard surveys, Of these participations,” 10l we

surveys. During Fiscal Year 1973, Defepse Cont

Services devoted § man-years to medical pre-award surveys.

re on drug pre-award

ract Administration

of this

figure, 3.4 man-years were devoted to drug pre-award sprveysT

b

How many man-years were devoted in F¥s 1969, 1971 and 1973 tp the

inspection of drugs by DBSG? By DSA?

ANSHER: By DSA.  (DCAS)

Fiscal Year 1969 - Approximstely 30 ¥
Fiscal Year 1971 -- Approximately 30 v
Fiscal Year 1973 -- Approximately 30

5. QUESTION:

What percentage of man-years of inspection time was devoted

same years to:

Pre-award surveys?
In-process inspection?

Acceptance of product inspection?

Qther?

ANSWER:

i Fiscal Year
DCAS 1973

Pre-Awqtd Surveys Approx. 11%
In-Process Inspection Approx., 19%
Acceptance of Product Inspection = Approx. 39%
31%

Qther . Approx.

Fiscal Year
1971

Approx.
Approx.
Approx.
Approx.

147
18%
42%,
26%

in the

Fiscal Year
1969

Approx. 20%
Approx. 18%
Approx. 40%
Approx. 227
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7. QUESTION:
For Fiscal Year 1973 please give the number of people in:

DSA -- Overhead assigned to DPSC Medical Material
DCAS -- Medical material support for drugs and other
medical material
DPSC == Medical Directorate
Supply Operations
Technical Operations
Laboratory
Overhead
Procurement Directorate
Medical Division
Drugs
Other

ANSWER:

DCAS ~-- Medical material support for drugs and other medical material:

Drugs == 303
Other -- 267

1t should be emphasized that the above figures represent full, part-
time and/or backup personnel. Those on part-time or backup assignments
‘have other non-drug or non-medical duties such as medical devices,
chemicals and petroleum. - Consequently, man-years give more objective
measurement of manpower; as was done in the answer to question 4 cover-
ing drug procurements for Fiscal Years 1969, 1971, and 1973, - A similar
measurement in man-years would be helpful in assessing the other non-
drug medical procurement manpower .data. For Fiscal: Year 1973, the
Defense Contract Administration Services manpower effort (full, part-
time and backup) in support of drug procurement is broken down by
organizational units approximately as follows: Quality Assurance -- 71
percent, Produttion -- 12 percent, Contract.Administration -- 15 percent
and-2 percent for other support. .

9. QUESTION:

Please give total DoD annual budget involved in inspection of drugs
for Fiscal Years 1969, 1971 and 1973.

ANSWER 3
Defense Contract Administration Costs =-- Drugs

Fiscal Contract
Year Quality Production Administration Other  Total
1969 $443,304’ $121,756 -~ °$80,698 $9993 $655,751
1971  $404,593 $103,076 $96,373 $4393 $608,435

1973 $547,090 $ 87,859 $89,853 $5750 $730,552

32-814 (Pt, 24) O - 74 -9
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TAB B

NON-PROCUREMENT QUALITY ASSURANCE TASKS PERFORMED BY DRUG QUALITY
ASSURANCE REPRESENTATIVES
DCAS

Quality assurance representatives support other contract administra-
tion elements and the Defense Personnel Support Center in the
following areas upon request or as the occaszon demands:

a. Damage, Abuse, Destruction of Government Furnished Material.
Unauthorized damage, abuse, or destruction of Government-owned material
is reported to the property administrator.

b. Strikes and Walkouts. Occurrences are reported to Industrial
Labor Relations.

¢. Buy American Act. Unauthorized purchases of raw materials
from foreign sources are reported to Defense Personnel Support Center.

d. Physical Security. Unsecure storage and handling of narcotics
and dangerous drugs are reported to the contractor and the Drug
Enforcement Administration of the Department of Justice,

e. ACCldentS. The Office of Specialized Safety and Flight .Operations
is advised of accidents resulting in inJury to Government employees or
jeopardy to delivery schedules.

f. Termination Settlements. Costs are validated in support of the
termination contracting officer, ’

g. Carrier Damage Complaints.  Complaints are investigated in
support of the QOffice of Transportation.

h. Production Support. Problems that may influence delivery
schedules are reported to the industrial specialist.
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PREAWARD SURVEYS
DCAS

In the process of awarding a comtract for goods or services, it is
the policy of the United States Government to evaluate business
organizations submitting bids as to their competence, capability’
and responsibility to perform on the contract. The purpose of this
policy is to assure timely delivery of quality products at fair and
reasonable prices. The ‘evaluation is called a "preaward survey,'

Another preaward action, separate and distinct from the one described
above, is performed by Department of Defense Contracts Compliance
offices. This is known as a preaward review and is performed to
determine if the contractor is in compliance with:Executive Orders
and Department of Labor regulations regarding equal ‘employment
opportunity. Preaward reviews performed by Contracts Compliance
Offices are separate and distinct from preaward surveys. The two
should not be confused. - )

For the Department of Defense and other selected Government:agencies,
the majority of preaward surveys aré made by nationwide offices of
the Defense Contract Administration Services (DCAS) accordihg to
guidelines outlined in the Armed Services Procurement Regulations,
As the situation may requite, other DoD or non-DoD specialists may
participate in the surveys also. ' B

A survey is conducted at the request of a buying agency. It is-a
team effort by military and civilian personmnel who are specialists
in fields such as accounting, production, contract management, :

~ business administration, property management, quality assurance,
engineering, transportation, packaging, industrial labor relations,
industrial security, legal counsel; and industrial readiness., They
investigate the prospective contractor's technical. capabilitys;
production. capability,: purchasing and subcontracting methods;
accounting methods, quality control: system, transportation and
packaging facilities, plant safety, laboxr' resources, performance
record, and other factors which may be specifically requested: by
the buying agency. The findings are reportéd'to the purchasing
agency who makes a determination of the contractor's responsibility,
as well as the decision to award the contract. )

The enclosed pamphlet describes preaward surveys in detail,

1'Encl o : :
Preaward Survey Information
for Prospective Government
Contractors, January 1973
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TAB C
QUESTIONNAIRE
INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SENATOR NELSON FROM DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
(DPSC_TNPUT)
4, QUESTION: . R

How many man-years were devoted in FY91969 .and 1971 to the inspec-
tion of drugs by DPSC? By DSA?

ANSWER:

Approximately 5.5 man-years of the technical personnel assigned to
the Quality Assurance Branch DPSC were devoted to the inspection of
drugs in Fis 69 and 71, .

5. Q STION:

What -percentage of man-years of inspection time was devoted in the
same years to:

Pre-award surveys?

In-process inspection?
Acceptance of product inspection?
Other?

In-store (Depot) surveillance?

G

ANSWER: - o
- . P69 FLT7L
Domestic Pre-Award Surveys )
‘Preparation/on site DPSG Participation Co19% o 19%
and Report Preparation
Requesting, Evaluation, and Report o 32 327
Preparation where DPSC did not o
. partiqipaﬁe‘ v
Foreign Surveys 19% - 19%
In-Process Inspection ’ - -
Other
Pre-Award Samples S , 10% 8%
Misc (Supervisior, Review of Protocol, - 15% - ° 17%
Special Inspection Requests, )
Contract Review,,etc.)
In-8tore (Depot) Suxveillance 5%

: (Quality Systems Managemenc Visit only) 5%

T00% - Too%
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9. QUESTION:

Please give total DoD annual budget involved in inspection of drugs
for Fiscal 1969, 1971, 1973. :

ANSWER:
Estimated DPSC Budget for Inspection of Drugs
FY 69 $165,000 - See 9a for details,
fY 71 $157,000 - See 9b for details,

FY 73 $187,000 - See 9c for details.



9.a.

N

\
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EY_ 89

Ldb - Technical and Clerical

# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-9 + Related (8+1/2%)
4.4 X $9320.00 X 1.085

ATQ - Quality Assurance Branch Techinical
# Persons ¥ Annual Salary @ GS-12 + Related (8+1/2%)
5.5 X $13,389.00 - X 1.085

ATQ - Quality Assurance Branch Clerical

# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-3 + Related (8+1/2%)
T . X $4360.00 <& X ).085

DPSC Overhead

# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-7 + Related (8+1/2%)
2 X $7639.00 X 1.085

\

Ty

Foreign & Domestic
$3650.00 $6900.00
Qutside Lab Testing

waTteE Reed & Ft. Knox & Commercial

. $6585.74 & $1134.44 & $845.00

$44,827.86

79,898.86

4,730.60

16,576.63

10,550.00

$ 165.142.13
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9.b, FY 71

Lab_- Technical and Clerical

# Persons X Annual Salary ® 65-10 + Related (8+1/2%)
1.8 X $10,252 X 1.085 ° . $20,022.16

ATQ - Quality Assurance Branch Technical

# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-12 + Related (8+1/2%) .
5.5 X $15,040 A X1.085 C 89,805.45
ATQ - Quality Assurance Branch Clerical
# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-3 + Related (8+1/2%) '
1 X $5524 : X 1.085 5.993454

DPSC Overhead
# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-7 + Re]afed (8+1/2%)
2 X $8582 . X 1.085 ]8,622.‘94
oy .
) Foreign & Domestic
$7490 .- & $7300 X 14,390.00
Outside Lab Tesﬁng

Walter Reed &AFt. Knox & Commercial
$6327.86 & 1700.73 & 380.00 8,412.59

$157,246.68



g.c.

1oy,
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FY 73

Lab = Technical and Clerical

# Persons X Annual Salary @ €5-10 + Related (8+1/2%)
2.3 $12,775 - X 1.085

ATQ - Quality Assurance Dranch Technical

# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-12 + Related (8+1/2%) -
6 X $16,682 X 1.085

ATQ - Quality Assurance Branch Clerical

# Persons X Annual Sa]éry @6s-3 + Related ( 8+1/2%)
1 X $6128 X 1.085
DPSC Overhead
# Persons X Annual Salary @ GS-7 + Related (8+1/2%)
2 X §9520 x1.08

Foreign & Domestic
$6150 & $7030

Qutside Lab Testing

Walter Reed & Ft. Knox & Commercial

$3101.00 & 1718.55 & 845.00

TG AR

$31,880.01

108,599.82

6,648.88

20,658.40

13,180.00

5,661.55
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13, QUESTION:
For the 150 top drugs -- by dollar volume -- bought by DoD:

Which pharmaceutical companies supplied the information which
was incorporated into each specification?

For each of these drugs, give the names of pharmaceutical
companies who have been successful bidders on DPSC contracts
for each product since original specification was first
written, Please give stock numbers, and established and
trade names of each product,

ANSWER:

The list of 150 top drug items forwarded with original submittal
was based upon demands from customers, This was the only listing that
was available within the prescribed time frame,

We have now developed a list of top dollars purchased (drugs) and
find that 27 products should be added to the list, and correspondingly
27 items should be deleted from the list,

Attachment (8) is the list of 27 items that should be added, It
should be noted that the numerical sequence is stated for each item,
The numerical sequence of the original list (attachment (b)) is modified
accoxdingly and forwarded herewith,
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15, QUESTION:

In the past several months Mr.'Feinberg of the DPSC has publicized
certain problems for which the Subcommittee is very anxious to secure
additional information, His statement and our questions are as follows:

(e) '"We develoé definitive product specifications which often
exceed official or commercial standards."

Please name each produét for which such specifications have been
developed; the significance for each product of these extra require-
ments; and the medical purpose served by these extra requirements,

ANSWER:

There are approximately 1200 drug items in FSC 6505 managed by DPSC,
About 800 items are monographed in the USP or NF- the balance is not
covered by official standards.

In preparing spegifications for USP and NF items, the compendial .
standards are the focal point for the technical data. Additional
standards are added in those instances where the need exists, _Included
are general requirements that exceed the standards of the USP and NF,

such as C si ecessary IOr quality and
contractual pruposes, limit on unrefrigerated shipping time for r -
€ra eéms, and leakage testing for flame-sealed ampuls, Standards

Tor individual items are added when problem areas are anticipated or
complaint background develops. Such additional data may be obtained or
developed from literature, industry, DMMB, DPSC staff, or DCAS Quality
Assurance Representatives,

For those items that are not covered by the USP/NF, specification,
data are requested from those firms listed by the DMMB as the commercial
reference, The Chemists/Pharmacists carefully review the submitted
specifications, taking into account published information found in the
literature, journals, handbooks, as well as their background and experience
with similar items, There are times when a firm's submitted data do not
contain sufficient requirements to insure a quality product, Other times,
the methods are not entirely satisfactory.

The DPSC specifications are coordinated in house before a specifica-
tion review board which consists of members of the Technical Services
Branch, the Office of Counsel, the DPSC Medical Laboratory, and the Quality
Assurance Branch,

Additional requirements for USP and NF items follow,
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Retain for future reference

OCTOBER 1973 issue of CALIFORNIA PHARMACIST

SOME MANUFACTURERS
DISCLOSE SOURCES OF SUPPLY

The last issue of the California Pharmacist (September, 1973, page
of i

5) reported the imp
tical manufacturers to
mantfacturer who produces t

The regulation;, effective July
. musteither include the names of
encapsulator or tabulator in the pro

which require p

disclose the name and: place of business of the
he finished dosage form.of their products.
28,.1973, provides that manufacturers
the mier of the final ingredients and the
duct's labeling and advertising mater-

ial, or provideAthis information in response to the written or oral request

s, many firms have not complied with the Association's request for

Under the provisions of these regulations {Section 10386 of Title 17 of

the California Administrative
identity of the manuifacturer of the
products of the firm failing to res

ies who have. not

beirig sent a final notice which will p

against non:

ded to the

firms.

of any ph P

In an effort to supply. information

t, or their p

who mixed the final ing!

dosage forms of prod
different companiss.

and 16th of August, are compiled in th
publication, over one month past the date of writing

DISTRIBUTOR

MANUFACTURER?

AMPICILLIN TRIKYDRATE 250 mg Capsules

American’ Pharmaceuticat Co:
American Quining Products

8. F. Ascher & Co:, Inc.

No Reply.

Zenith Labs., Inc.
{Northvale, NJ)
International Labs., Inc.2
(Mayaguez, Puerto .Higo)

Ayeist L

Beecham-Massengill Pharm,
Bristol Laboratories, Div.

of Bristol-Myers:Co.
Coastal Pharmaceutical Co.
Colusmbia Medical Company

Consofidated Midland Corp.

1CN Pharmaceuticals; inc.
Strong Cobly Arner.
Paike, Davis & Company
Purepac Pharmaceutical Co.
Rachelle Laboratorles, Inc.

Sheiry:Pharm. Co., Inc.
Smiiih Kiine & French, Labs.
£. R, Squibb & Sons, Inc.
Stayner Corporation

Towne, Patlsen & Co., Inc..

‘West-ward, Inc.
Wolins. Pharmacal Corp.

OCTOBER, 1973.

harm.?

(Piscataway, NJ}

Beecham, Inc.

Bristol Labs.

(E. Syracuse, NY)
Rey

o Reply

Biocraft Labs.

(E. Paterson, NJ}
Reid Provident ¢ or
Zenith Labs., Inc.
No Reply

Replied*®
o Reply :
International Labs.®

Mo Reply -

E. R. Squibb & Sons; Inc.
International Labs. . .~
(Atlanta, GA)

International Labs.
(Atlanta, GA)

John D. Copanos & Co., inc.
(Baftimore, MD) .

Biocraft Labs.

{E. Paterson, NJ)

No Reply -~ .

" Biocraft Labs:

to the profession, the California
q d the identity of the manufacturer
redients and encapsulated or tableted the finished

d of distributed by over fifty
The results of these requests, mailed on the 15th
¢ following table. At the time of
0 the manufactur-

DATE
REPLIED

8-29-73
9-07-73
9:05-73
9-27-73
8:20-73
8-05-73
8-21-73

9-19-73

8-24-73 *

8:31-73
8-20-73

g7

’ -9-06-73

" Pharmacis
of the manufacturer-of any
law, should notify the CPhA

October 1, 1973
has advised CPhA of the receipt o
name of the manufacturer of the fi

taken.
The following list indicates the

1s who have not been provided information as to the identity
prescription drug as provided for in California
offices so that appropriate action may be

Code), failure o respond to requests for the
¢ finishéd dosage form shall resuit in the
pond being deemed misbranded. Those

i °s requests are
receed the. institution of legal

replies received at this office as of

. ‘DISTRIBUTOR

AMPICILLIN ANKYDROUS
Wyelh Laboratories

BROPHENIRAMINE MALEATE
~=Elixir (Dimetane)
A. H. Robins Company

MANUFACTURER!

Wyeth Labs.
(Philadelphia, PA)

A. H. Robins Company
(Richmond, VA)

—Susiained Rélease Tablets (Dimetane Extentabs)

A. H. Robins Company .

—Susialied Reloase Tablets with pl

(mmmp; Extaniabs)
A. H. Robins Company

DEXAMETHASONE 0.75 mg Tablots

CIBA Pharmageutical Co.
Consolidated Midland Corp.

“*Merck Sharp & Dohmé
Div. of Merck & Co,."inc.

Qrganon, Inc.
Schering Corp.
Sherry Pharm..Co., i:\w.

ICN Pharmaceuticals
Strong Cobb Arner
(Cincinnati, OH)

request” indi that th
f the request but has not supplied the
nal dosage form prior to press time.

DATE
REPLIED

8-24-73

8-27-73

8-27-73

ICN Phatmaceulicals
Strong Cobb Amner
(Cincinnati, OH)

Cord Laboratories
acknowledged. request

Organon, Inc.’
Schering Corp.
No R,ply

USV F p.
Zenith Laboratories, Ifc.

ysv F ical Gorp.
Zenith Labs., Inc.
{Northvae; NJ)®

P -
Danbiry Pharmacal? or

8-27-73

8-21-73
8-20-73

8-23-73
9-18-73

8-31-78
8-20-73

(Continued on page 8)
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(Continued from page 7)

DISTRIBUTOR MANUFACTURER'

DONNATAL Tablets

A. H: Robins Company

€li Lilly & Company
The Upjohn Company

ERYTHROMYCIN STEARATE 250 mo hblals
Abb

Abbott Laboratories
American Quinine Products

Bristol L ies, Div,

A. H: Robins Company
(Richmond, VA)

ERYTHROMYCIN BASE 250 mg Tablets

Ei Lilly & Company
Indianapolis, IN)
‘he Upjohn Company

it Labs.®
Zennh Labs., Inc,
(Northvale, NJ)
Bristol L

of Bristor-Myers Company
Columbia Medical Gompany

Mallinckrodt Pharmaceuticals
Parke, Davis & Company
Sherty Pharm. Co., inc.
Smith Kiine & French Labs.
Towne, Paulsen & Co.., Inc.

West-ward, Inc. )
Wyeth Laboratories

Zenith Laboratories, Inc.

FENFLURAMINE 20 mg Tablets

A. H. Robins Company

GLYCERYL GUAIACOLATE Syrup

A. H. Robins Company

Abbott Laboratories
Century Phasmaceuticals, Inc.

Consolidated Midland Corp.
Eli Lilly & Company

Medwick Laboratories, Inc.
Organon, inc.

Parke, Davis & Company
Robinson Labaralories, Inc
Towne, Paulsen & Co., Inc.

The Upjohn Company
Wyeth Laboratories

.

Geigy Pharmaceuticals
Div. of Ciba-Geigy Corp.
Merck Sharp & Dohme
Div. of Merck & Co., Inc.

* *Wolins Pharmacal Corp.

L-DOPA 250 mg Capsules

Eaton Laboraiories, Div.
Morton-Norwich Products,

Inc.
Roche Laboratosies, Div.
Hoftmann-LaRoche, Inc.

(E. Syracuse, NY)
Zenith Labs., Inc.
(Northvale, NJ)

No Reply

Replied*?

No Reply

No-Reply

Mylan Pharmaceuticals
{Morgantown, WV}
Ne Reply

Mylan Pharmaceuticals”
(Morgantown, WV)
Zenith Labs., Inc.®
(Northvale, NJ}

A. H. Robins Company
(Richmond, VA)

A. H. Robins Company
{Richmond, VA)

HEPARIN SODIUM 1000 Units/cc Immlan

bbott Laboratories®

Medwnck Laboratories, Inc.

(Chicago, iL)

Elkins-Sinn o

Medical Chemicals*
Eli Lilly & Company

(Indlanapolts N}
No Reply

Organon, Ine.

Replied*®

No Reply

Medwick Laboratories, Inc.

%Melrose Patk, IL)
he Upjohn Company
Wyeth Laboratories
(Philadeiphia, PA)

HYDROCHLOROTHIAZIOE 50 mg Tablels

No Reply

acknowlédged request
~

Zenith Labs., inc

Eaton Laboratories, inc.

(Norwich, NY)

Roche Laboratories
(Nuttey, NJ)

DATE
REPLIED

8-27-73

8-30-73
8-30-73
8-24-73
8-29-73
8-29-73
9-05-73

9-19-73

8:29-73

8-24-73
8-20-73

8-27-73

8-27-73

8-24-73
8-29-73

8-27-73
8-30-73
8-27-73
9-19-73
8-27-73

8-30-73
8:24-73

8-20-73
9-06-73

8-23-73

8-21-73

DISTRIBUTOR MANUFACTURER!

MEPROBAMATE 200 & 400 my Tablets

American Pharmaceutical Co.
American Quinine Products

Barr Laboratories, Inc.

Columbia Medical Co.
ICN Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Strong Cobb Arner
Kirkman Laboratories®
McKesson Laboratories, Div.
Foremost-McKesson, Inc
Parke, Davis & Company
Purepac Pharmaceutical Co.
Richlyn Laboratories, Inc.®

Sherry Pharm. Co., Inc.
Stanlabs, inc.

Smith Kiine & French Labs.
Stayner Corp:

Towne, Paulsen & Co., Inc

Wallace Pharmaceuticals

Div. of Carter-Wallace, Inc.

Wolins Pharmacal Corp.#
Wyeth Laboratories

Zenith Laboratories, Inc.

ICN Pharmaceuticals, inc.
Strong Cobb Arner

Lederle Laboratories, Div.
of American Cyanamid

Company
Eli Lilly & Company
A. H. Robins Company

Robinson Laboratory, Inc.
Sherry Pharm. Co., Inc.

E. R. Squibb & Sons, inc.
Towne, Pauisen & Co., Inc.

West-ward, Inc.

McKesson Laboratories, Div.
Foremost-McKesson, Inc.

Plizer Laboratories, Div.
Pfizer; Inc.

Purepac Pharmaceutical Co.

PREDNISONE 5-mg Tablels
American Pharmaceutical. Co.

Barr Laboratories, Inc.
Columbia Medical Co.
First Texas Pharm., Inc

ICN Pharmaceuticals., Inc.
Strong Cobb Arner

Kirkman Laboratories

McKesson Laboratories, Div.
Foremost-McKesson, Inc.

No Reply

Zenith Labs.. Inc.
(Northvale, NJ)
Barr Labs.. inc.
(Northvale, NJ)
Zenith Labs., Inc.
No Reply

No Reply
No Reply

Replied*?

No Reply

Richiyn Labs.. Inc.
{Philadeiphia, PA)
No Reply..

No Reply

No Reply

Zenith Labs.. Inc.
(Northvalg, NJ)

Towne, Paulsen & Co:. Inc.

{Monrovia, CA) -
Carter-Wallace, irc.
(Cranbury, NJ).
Heather Drug Co.. In¢
Wyeth Labs.
(Philadelphia, PA}
Zenith Labs., Inc.
{Northvale, NJ)

PENICILLIN V POTASSIUM 250 mg Tablets

Ko Reply

Lederle Laboraturies

Efi Lilly & Company®
(Indianapolis, IN)
Biocraft Laboratories

(E. Paterson, NJ)

No Reply

No Reply

E. R. Squibb & Sons, Inc.
Mylan Pharmaceuticals Tnc.
(Morgantown, WV)

John D. Copanos & Co.,
(Baltimore, MD)

No Regly

No Reply

No Rejly
No Reply

No Reply

Barr Labs., Inc.
(Norihvale; N.)

Biue Cross Products
(Brooklyn, NY)

First Texas Pharm., Inc.
{Dallas, TX)

No Reply

No Reply
No Reply

DATE
REPLIED

8-29-73
8-20-73
9-05-73

9-19-72

9-05-73

8:21-73
8:27-73

8-29-73
8-27-75

8-20-73
905 73
8-23-73

CALIFORNIA PHARMACIS?T
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dispensed in the United States. The pharmacist’s interest stems
primarily from the fact that the pharmacist knows how important
the medication is to the patient and the pharmacist has to look the
patient or a member of his family in the eye. The pharmacist has
no vested economic self-interest in the price the manufacturer
charges for his drug products because the pharmaceutical service
system provides that the pharmacist be reimbursed what the phar-
‘macist pays for the drug product. On the other hand, the pharmacist
does have an obvious professional objective in providing patients
with effective and safe medication at reasonable prices.

No subject investigated by your subcommittee in the almost 7
years of your extensive work is, from the pharmacist and patient
point of view, more important than the hearings you are now hold-
ing. More than two billion prescriptions are being dispensed annu-
ally—more than five million daily—and the patients who take these
prescriptions have a right to expect their government to resolve the
- question of how much confidence can be placed in the medicines

their pharmacists dispense. ' :

APﬁA as the national professional society for all pharmacists has
no ax to grind for anybody, but the patient and his pharmacist. The
pharmacist does not care whether a drug product is made and mar-
keted by a large firm or a small firm, as long as the pharmacist can
be assured of the product’s safety and efficacy. APhA knows that
high quality prescription drugs can be and are fabricated by manu-
facturers of all sizes.

APhA also knows that the hallmark of quality is not derived by
giving a product a euphonious brand name. And we have watched
with interest the development of so-called “branded generics” by
such fine firms as Lilly, Lederle, SKF and Upjohn.

Simply stated, the situation in our country today is that one agency
of the Federal Government says that you can depend on the quality
of the Nation’s drug supply, and another agency of the same Gov-
ernment would like you to believe otherwise. Regardless of how
this controversy is resolved, APhA is sick and tired of having the
finest drug supply in the world under a constant cloud of suspicion.
It was bad enough when only the pharmacist was the target of this
propaganda, but now prescribers and patients are asking the phar-
macist for assurance. S ,

APhA believes the country can ill afford further delay in putting
the issue to rest. '

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be glad to answer questions
now or after Dr. Feldmann submits his testimony.

Senator NEerson. Well, when you refer to “another agency-of the
same government,” you are referring to the Defense Department ?

Dr. Appre. Mr. Chairman, I am saying that HEW—the Food
and Drug Administration—says the drug supply is good, and the
Department of Defense has been casting clouds over the Nation’s
drug supply for the last several years with statements made by
some of their spokesmen.

Senator NrLson. Well, the same thing is true, is it not, of the
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association in respect to generics?
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In other words, they repeatedly said, sometimes subtly, more fre-
quently not so subtly, that you can only trust the big brand name
companies, of which most all of them are members of the PMA, is
_that not so? , o

Dr. Apprr. I would certainly have to agree that that is the thrust
of their propaganda. ‘ .

Senator Nerson. I thought it was interesting. You say that the
APhA “also knows that the hallmark of quality is not derived by
giving a drug product a euphonious trade name, and we have
watched with interest the development of so-called ‘branded generics’
by such fine firms-as Lilly, Lederle, SKF and Upjohn.”

T found interesting a recent report from the FDC reports—fré-
quently called the Pink Sheet—of July 16, 1973, which states that:

Squibb,  Pfizer and Wyeth have recently joined ‘SKF, Robins and Parke-
Davis as purchasers of antibiotics and other generic dosage forms from
Mylan a private formula manufacturer in Morgantown, . West Virginia.
Mylan’s private formula- sales to major drug manufacturers jumped to
$4,800,000 in fiscal year 1973 ending March 31 from $2,200.000 & year earlier.

Emerging as Mylan’s top major pharmaceutical marketing customer _in
fiscal year 1973, Squibb purchased $1.3 million erythromyein, in the first
year it bought anything from the Morgantown private formula -manufacturer.
Mylan is sole supplier for Squibby’ erythromyein. introduced in 1972.

A Squibb spokesman said the company decided to use Mylan rather than
processing erythromyecin itself because of the “difficult technology involved.”
Mylan is one of the few companies capable of making the product, the Squibb
spokesman said.

Well, I think that is rather interesting, since their own associa-
tion keeps attacking the generics as not being of the same quality
as the trade name products. And here you have Squibb saying that
* this little company which hardly anybody has heard of has the
difficult technology to master this, and I think we ought to lay to
rest this propaganda campaign that the Pharmaceutical Manufac-
turers Association and the DOD have been carrying on.

Dr. Appre. Mr. Chairman, if T could comment on that. We tried
to lay that issue to rest. Our association has a policy encouraging
legislation that would reveal the actual identity of the fabricator
of the dosage form on the label, as well as the identity of the dis-
tributor. That legislation has been enacted in the State of Cali-
fornia and more recently in the State of Kentucky.

_There is an effort by the Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Associa-
tion now in California to have that legislation amended, and I
regret to say that it has already passed one House of the California
legislature. : :

For the record, I can give you the information that California was
able to gather under prevailing regulations of this so-called “Crown
Statute.” And I would particularly like to call to your attention an
editorial which appeared in the November 1973 California Pharmacist,
in which the editor asked, “It is difficult to understand why the drug
industry is fearful of having the pharmacist and physician know who
really makes their drug products. PMA consistently maligns small
manufacturers by suggesting their products may not be of adequate
quality. Yet, they are attempting to deny the pharmacist the informa-



- 10114 COMPETITIVE PROBLEMS IN THE DRUG INDUSTRY

*sa3op Azojeuetdxg seg
"s3308 AzoreuURidXy EEE

*sa30y £xozeueidxy oog
"$s30% Azojeuwidxy ssg’

. *ser0N Aroreueidxg Sog

*s901308ad SutInysernuen pool
© UITA JU9ISTSUOD PIZITTIN 9IR STo3u0d pue’
saanpsvead uciyonpoad 1s3g-2ansse oy !
*$991308ad Butangdeznuew poof U3 Jusysts |
~HOdVT ST $I1ITINAWT . 3§8Y3 Jo sousssid |
34l "we3T 8yl yo Buyssevoxd ehy uY uom
‘STPIISITW JO §90IN0S uUT s23upys woly o
‘saanpedoeid uoTionpoad woay ssyxe Lem Yy |
p219932p axe s9T3Tandwr 1'Y3 2iInsse of

"UOTIRIOTIDIBP BSNED- ABW

®INISTOM IATSSPOX3 3yl ul “zonpoxd
2yl 3o £3171Qe3S 5U3 2aInsse o],
*$230) AloiruRTdxy esg

ise308 Laojeueydxy asg

rselo0N L1ordueidxy seg |

'S121GRI 3Yya

ul juesaad sT juetpeafus SATIOP |

|4l -3eys, sansse.leylani of |
P *S$330N Aaojvueydxg EETS

S 1

9381038 po3exsfiizey Butxinboy swe3y 103
sowr), Supddrys Po32238TIIBIUN - WRWINE]
$39933Q 3O uOTIBOTFISSRID

sinduy s07 159y oFeyw

7
8309390 IO UOTIBITIISSERID

S20879Q 30 WOTIBIIIISSED

JUBWIPIS WO Baxg

2070D-¥idY

2ANISTON
§39333¢ JO VOTIEITIISSRID

*9821035 pojersBrizsi Butarnbsa swoyr

103 sauwtl Burddrys pajeiafiaysiun wWIKeR

§392I%Q IO GOIIEOTITISSRYD

- HONY2I4INDTS

i
[

“peTagq vzesx

‘p31agl-ozesz

060 dm ‘sImTaTa pray

EI

TAutyay pue




